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AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

We have audited the annexed statement of financial position of HOUSE BUILDING
FINANCLE COMPANY LIMITED (“the Company”) as at 31 December 2012 and the
related profit and loss account, statement of comprehensive income, cash flow
statement and statement of changes in equity together with the notes forming part
thereof, for the year then ended and we state that we have obtained all the
information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were
necessary for the purposes of our audit.

It is the responsibility of the Company’s management to establish and maintain a
system of internal control, and prepare and present the above said statements in
conformity with the approved accounting standards and the requirements of the
Companies Ordinance, 1984. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
stalements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards as applicable in
Pakistan. These standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the above said statements are free of any
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the above said statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting policies and significant estimates made by
management, as well as, evaluating the overall presentation of the above said
statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion and,
after due verification, we report that:

(@) Since the date of our appointment was subsequent to the reporting date, we
could not perform necessary cutoff procedures and remained unable to observe
the cash counting and physical verification of certain moveable assets of the
Company at the year end;

(b) Bank reconciliation statements of various bank accounts include long
outstanding debit and credit entries of Rupees 28.073 million and Rupeces
17.436 million respectively which remained unidentified and unadjusted in the
financial statements. The management did not provide us any satisfactory
explanation regarding these unidentified entries. Further, out of fifty five (55)
requests circularized to the banks, where the Company maintains its bank
accounts, having balances aggregating to Rupees 211.146 million, we did not
receive responses against lwenty eight (28) requests from the banks with
balances totaling to Rupees 109.666 million;

(c) The Company manages different databases for its customer portfolio through
information system at head office and branches which is not integrated. On our
test check of some of the partners’ ledger accounts of advances at branches, we
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identified differences in principal outstanding and respective provision against
non-performing advances, rental outstanding, group insurance premium
outstanding and property insurance premium outstanding between database
managed by the head office and database managed by branches. No exercise
was conducted during the year by the management to reconcile, ascertain and
adjust these differences in the books of account. Further, we were also not
allowed to circularize direct balance confirmation letters to partners due to such
differences. Furthermore, the income on advances booked in previous years
amounting to Rupees 245.797 million was reversed in these financial statements.
Such reversals arise on recurring basis due to erroneous recording of income
owing to information system inefficiencies and posting errors;

Provision against non-performing advances was not made as per Prudential

Regulations for Consumer Financing. Classification of non-performing advances
was determined by dividing total defaulted amount with amount of an
installment to calculate overdue period instead of calculating exact overdue
period from the due date. The partial amount of an overdue installment was also
considered as full installment in aforesaid calculation. We also noted that the
benefit of Forced Sale Value was not taken or less taken in some of the classified
accounts while calculating provision against non-performing advances. During
the year, the management did not carry out any exercise to ascertain and
account for the effect of this practice on provision against non-performing
advances, if any. Further, during last year an exercise was carried out to rectify
the effects of flawed ascertainment of the provision against non-performing
advances and an additional provision of Rupees 160.092 million was accounted
for in the general ledger. However, the management did not post such provision
in the respective partners’ subsidiary ledger accounts so far.

The management did not provide us proper justification and satisfactory
explanation of placing following balances in Deferred Credits as disclosed in
note 12.4 to the financial statements:

i. As previously required under the HBFC (Amendment) Ordinance, 2001,
‘demand charges net of recovery expenses’ amounting to Rupees 523.672
million were included in Deferred Credits to be used for charitable purpose.
Accumulated donations paid till 31 December 2012 out of this were Rupees
105 million. Since the aforesaid ordinance is no more applicable on the

Company, the accounting treatment of demand charges, recovery expenses

and donations is not in accordance with the applicable approved accounting
standards;

ii. Profit commission - net of death claims received from State Life Insurance
Corporation (SLIC) amounting to Rupees 208.562 million accumulated up to
31 December 2009 was credited in Deferred Credits instead of profit and loss
account when received. Receipts of profit commission from SLIC, subsequent
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to aforesaid date, are being offset against advances which at the reporting
date aggregated to Rupees 124.421 million;

iii. Deferred credits include accumulated debit balance on account of expense
provided for doubtful insurance receivable from partners amounting to
Rupees 183.036 million which should have been charged to profit and loss
account when created;

iv. Deferred credits include a credit balance of Rupees 52.503 million in respect
of insurance premium received from unidentified partners. Further, it also
includes a debit balance of Rupees 12.495 million on account of property
insurance for which no information is available with the Company;

v. Deferred Credits have also been credited with accumulated profit allocation
of Rupees 840.049 million up to the reporting date, which also includes
current year’s profit allocation of Rupees 124.594 million. In our view, these
amounts should have been recognized in profit and loss account in the
respective years.

Except for the effects of adjustments, if any, as might have been determined to be
necessary, had we been able to satisfy ourselves in respect of the matters stated in the
preceding paragraphs (a) to (e) we report that:

() in our opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the Company as
required by the Companies Ordinance, 1984;

(g) in our opinion:

() the statement of financial position and profit and loss account together with
the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies
Ordinance, 1984, and are in agreement with the books of account and are
further in accordance with accounting policies consistently applied;

(ii) the expenditure incurred during the year was for the purpose of the
Company’s business; and

(iii) the business conducted, investments made and the expenditure incurred
during the year were in accordance with the objects of the Company;

(h) in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the statement of financial, profit and loss account,
statement of comprehensive income, cash flow -statement and statement of
changes in equity together with the notes forming part thereof conform with
approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan, and, give the
information required by the Companies Ordinance, 1984, in the manner so
required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s
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alfairs as at 31 1December 2012 and of the loss, its comprehensive loss, its cash
llows and changes in equity for the year then ended; and

()1 ow opinion, no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr
Ordinance, 1980 (XVII of 1980).

Emphasis of Matter
We also draw attention to the following matters:

(1) Note 1.1 to the financial statements state that the Company has not complied
with the minimum capital requirement of Rupees 6,000 million set out by State
Bank of Pakistan and also discloses endeavors being made to meet the minimum
capital requirement and the exemption granted by State Bank of Pakistan to the
Company in this regard.

(2) Note 11.1.1 to the financial statements discloses the overdue credit lines from
State Bank of Pakistan and events subsequent to the reporting date relating to
decision made on conversion of borrowings (credit lines) from State Bank of
Pakistan along with markup payable into equity of the Company.

Our opinion is not further qualified in respect of these matters.

e of engagement partner:
Muhammad Hamid Jan

Datég 2 APR 2076

KARACHI
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HOUSE BUILDING FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2012

ASSETS

Cash and balances with treasury banks
Balances with other banks

l.endings to financial institutions
Investments - net

Advances - nel

Operating fixed assets

Deferred tax assets

Other assets

LIABILITIES

3ills payable

Borrowings

Deposits and other accounts

Sub-ordinated loans

Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease
Deferred tax liabilities

Other liabilities

NET ASSETS

REPRESENTED BY
Share capital

Rescrves
Accumulated loss

Advance against issue of capital
Surplus / {(deficit) on revaluation ol assets

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Note

O 0O

8.6
14

15

2012

2011

- - - Rupees in '000 - - -

63,943 57.803
168.310 448,761
181,038 4,432

8,855,424 7,839,516
9,887,366 10,392,064
263,500 214,516
503,681 329,620
19,923,262 19,286,712

11,695,300

5,683,114

11,992,300

4,530,138

17,378,414 16,522,438
2,544,848 2,764,274
3,001,000 3,001,000

620,610 620.610

(1,299,015)  (1,070,466)

2.322,595 2.551,144
218,143 218,143
4,110 (5,013)
2,544,848 2,764,274

The annexed notes from 110 39 Torm an integral part of these financial statements.
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HOUSE BUILDING FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

Rental / mark-up / return / interest earned

Rental / mark-up / return / interest expensed

Net rental / mark-up / interest income

Reversals of provision made against non performing advanccs

Reversal / (provision) for diminution in value of investments
(Provision) / reversal for diminution in value of lendings to financial institutions
Amount received from GoP against remission of advances to widows

Reconciliation adjustments
Reversal due to relief package and reprocessing adjustments
Net rental / mark-up / interest income after provisions

NON MARK-UP / INTEREST INCOME

Fee, commission and brokerage income

Dividend income

Income from dealing in foreign currencies

Gain / (loss) on sale of securities ]

Unrealized gain / (loss) on revaluation of investment classified as held for trading
Other income

‘Total non-mark-up / interest income

NON MARK-UP/INTEREST EXPENSES
Administrative expenses

Voluntary Severance Schemc - nct

Other provisions / write offs

Other charges

Total non-mark-up / inlerest expenscs

Share in results of an associate before taxation
(LOSS) / PROFIT BEFORE ALLOCATION FOR STATFE
BANK OF PAKISTAN SHARE
State Bank of Pakistan sharc of loss / (profit) on credit lines
(LLOSS) / PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
Taxation
- Current
- for the ycar
- prior year
- Deferred

(LLOSS) / PROFIT AFTER TAXATION

Basic & diluted (loss) /7 earnings per share - Rupees

2012 2011
Note  ----Rupeesin'000----
16 2,535,381 2,630,558
17 (1,140.628) (1,100,426)
1,394,753 1,530,132
18 71,350 665,008
68,895 (19.456)
(4,432) 3,324
- 865,074
135,813 1.513,950
19 - 4,691
20 (248.569) (301,544)
1,281,997 2,747,229
21 79,138 43,838
79.138 43,838
1,361,135 2.791.067
22 (1,542.624) (1.410.732)
23 - (417.689)
24 817 (49.501)
25 (8.913) (7,040)
(1,550.720)  (1,884,962)
(189.585) 906.105
7.8 - -
(189,58%) 906.105
26 1,290 (94,443)
(188,295) 811.662
27
(40.215) (112.885)
(39) (23.178)
(40,254) (136,063)
(228,549) 675,599
28 {0.76) 2.25

The annexed notes from | 1o 39 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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HOUSE BUILDING FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

2012 2011
- - Rupees in '000 - -

(Loss) / profit for the ycar (228,549) 675,599

Other comprehensive income - -

Total comprechensive (loss) / income for the ycar (228,549) 675,599

Surplus / deficit on revaluation of "available-for-sale' sccurities is presented in statement of financial position
under a separatc head below equity as "Surplus / (deficit) on revaluation of assets” in accordance with the
requirements specilied by the Companics Ordinance, 1984 and the State Bank of Pakistan vide its BSD
Circular 20 dated August 04, 2000 and BSD Circular 10 dated July 13, 2004.

The annexed notes from 1 to 39 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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HOUSE BUILDING FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

. Statutory Accumulated .
Sharc capital Fotal
reserve loss
Rupees in '000

Balance at December 31, 2010 3,001.000 485,490 (1,610,945) 1,875,545
Comprehensive income for the year
Profit after tax for the year
ended December 31.2011 - - 675,599 675,599
Other comprehensive income - - - -

- - 675,599 675.599
Transfer to statutory reserve * - 135,120 (135,120) -
Balance at December 31, 2011 3.001,000 620,610 (1,070,4606) 2.551.144
Comprehensive loss for the year
Loss after tax for the year
ended December 31, 2012 - - (228,549) (228,549)
Other comprehensive income - - - -

- (228,549) (228,549)

Transfer to statutory reserve - - - -
Balance at December 31, 2012 3.001.000 620.610 (1,299,015) 2,322,595

* This represents reserve created under BPD circular No. 15 of 2004 which requires the Company to credit to its
reserve an amount not less than 20% of its after tax profit till such time the rescrve equals the amount of paid-up
capital. Thereafter. a sum not less than 5% of its after tax profit shall be credited to the said reserve.

The annexed notes from 1 1o 39 form an integral part of these financial statements,
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HOUSE BUILDING FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2012

2012 2011
Note  --—-- Rupeces in '000 ---—-
A. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(Loss) / profit before taxation (188,295) 811,662
Adjustments:
Depreciation 24,040 24,195
Amortization of intangible asscts 1,014 839
Gain on sale of operating fixed assets (4,613) (2,753)
Fixed assets adjustments 173 (4,724)
RN . i AP ending
l_rovns.non./ (‘lf:\crs(ll) of provision for dimunition in valuc of lending to 4.432 (3.324)
financial institutions .
(Reversal) / provision for dimunition in value ol investments (68,895) 19,456
Reversals of provision made against non performing advances (71,350) (665,008)
Reconciliation adjustments - (4,691)
Reversal of remtal income 248,569 301,544
Provision against Gawadar Housing Project - 50,470
Amount received from GoP against remission of advances to widows - (865,074)
Rental / mark-up / rcturn / interest expensed 1,140,628 1,100,426
1,273,998 (48,644
1,085,703 763,018
Decrease in operating asscts
Advances 327.479 658,156
Lending to financial institutions (181.038) 990,116
Other assets excluding advance tax 9,672 830,742
156,113 2,479,014
Increase / Decrease in operating Jiabilitics
Borrowings (297,000) (300,000)
Other liabilities 145,079 (249,821)
(151,921) (549,821)
Financial charges paid (86.510) (140,340)
Income tax paid (271,927) (113,994)
Net cash Nows from operating activities 731,458 2,437,877
B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Fixed capital expenditure (73.080) (66,097)
Sale proceeds from disposal of operating fixcd asscts 5,201 3,215
Investments made-nct (937,890) (2,024,206)
Net cash {lows used in investing activities (1,005,769) (2,087,088)
C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES - -
(Decrease) / increasc iri cash and cash equivalents (274.311) 350.789
Cash and cash cquivalents at beginning of the year 506,564 155,775
Cash and cash equivalents at end ol the year 29 232,253 506,564

The annexed notes from 110 39 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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1.1

HOUSE BUILDING FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR TIIE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

The House Building Finance Company Limited (the Company) is an unlisted public limited
company incorporated in Pakistan on June 13, 2006 under the Companies Ordinance,]984.
The registered office of the Company is situated at Finance and Trade Centre Building,
Sharah-c-IFaisal. Karachi, in the province of Sindh. Pursuant to a vesting order SRO.1/2007
dated July 25, 2007 issued by the Finance Division - Government of Pakistan effective from
January 01, 2007, the Company had taken over all assets, running business, contracts,
liabilities and proceedings of the House Building Finance Corporation (HBFC), established
in 1952 under the House Building IFinance Corporation Act 1952 (XVIII of 1952) by the
Government of Pakistan from closing of the business on December 31, 2006.

The Company is designated as a financial institution by the Federal Government and is
providing financing facilitics for the construction. reconstruction, renovation and purchase of
houses through a network of 48 district offices and 10 zonal offices throughout Pakistan
including Azad Jammu and Kashmir. According to credit rating report dated July 23, 2012
of JCR-VIS, the long term and short term ratings of the Company are "A" and "A-2"
respectively. '

In accordance with BSD Circular No. 19 dated September 05, 2008 the minimum paid up
capital requirement (frce of losscs) of the Company at December 31, 2009 and in future
periods is Rs. 6 billion till further notification. The paid up capital of the Company (free of
losses) as al Dccember 31, 2012 is Rs. 2.323 billion. State Bank of Pakistan vide its letter
No. BSD/BAID/659/2145/2012 dated lebruary 16, 2012 has granted cxemption to the
Company from the minimum capital requirement till December 31, 2012 or completion of
privatization / restructuring process, whichever is later. The Company is in process of
financial restructuring and proposal in this regard was submitted to the Ministry of Finance
and Statc Bank of Pakistan.

Subsequent to year end, a meeting has held on 11 July 2014 between the representatives of
State Bank of Pakistan (SBP), Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) and
the Company under the chairmanship of the IFinance Minister. Government of Pakistan,
whereby it has been decided that the Company's total outstanding debt of Rs. 11.242 billion
payable to SBP along with markup payable of Rs. 2.448 billion (i.e. aggregating to Rs.
13.690 billion§ shall be converted into SBP's investment in the equity of the Company and
the remaining portion of markup of Rupees 2 billion of outstanding markup as of June 30,
2014 will be paid up by the Company immediately. The decisions of the aforesaid meeting
has been communicated to the Company by IFinance Division, Government of Pakistan vide
its notification No. IF.I2)IFF-1/2011-Vol-11/1104 dated July 15, 2014 and No. I.6(9)-1F-
111/2008 dated July 24, 2014 and the Company paid Rupccs 2 billion in compliance with the
directives on August 18, 2014.

In view of the above, the management of the Company is confident that the shortfall against
minimum capital requirement is temporary and the Company will be in compliance with the
minimum capital requirement and earning profits in the foresecable future.



2.2

2.3

BASIS OF PRESENTATION
Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting
standards as applicable in Pakistan, the requirements of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (the
Ordinance) and the dircctives issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
(SECP) and the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) including BSD Circular No. 04 dated February
17, 2006. Approved accounting standards comprise of such International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and Islamic
Financial Accounting Standards (1IF'AS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan as arc notilicd under the Companies Ordinance, 1984. In case requirements differ,
the provisions of and dircctives issued under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 and directives
issucd by the SBP shall prevail.

The SBP through its BS1> Circular Letter No. 11 dated September 11, 2002 has deferred the
applicability of International  Accounting Standard (1AS) 39, 'Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Mcasurement’ and International Accounting Standard (JAS) 40, 'Investment
Property till further instructions. Further, according to the notification of SECP dated April
28, 2008, 1I'RS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' has not been made applicable for
companics cngaged in housing [inance scrvices. Accordingly, the requirements of these
standards have not been considered in the preparation of these financial statements.
However, investments have been classified and valued in accordance with the requirements
preseribed by the SBP through various circulars.

Requircments of Section 24(20)(d) of the House Building IFinance Corporation (HBFC) Act,
1952 as amended by the HBFC (Amendmient) Ordinance, 2001 and ratified by the Board of
the Company in respeet ol demand charges have been followed.

Standards, amendments and interpretations to  published approved accounting
standards that are cffective in the current year but not relevant to the Company or do
not have material impact

The following standards, amendments and interpretations of approved accounting standards
are effective for accounting periods beginning on or after January 01, 2012:

Standards/Interpretations
- 1AS 34 - Interim Financial Reporting
- IAS | - Presentation of Financial Statements (Amendments)

- IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes (Amcndments)

There arc other new and amended standards and interpretations that are mandatory for
accounting periods beginning on or afler January 1, 2012 but are considered not relevant or
do not have a significant effect on the Bank’™s operations and therefore are not detailed in the
financial statements.

Standards, amendments and interpretations to  published approved accounting

standards that are relevant and not yet effective

The following standards, amendments and interpretations of approved accounting standards
will be effective for accountine periods beeinning on or after Januarv 01. 2013.

.
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2.5

IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (2011) - (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2013) . IAS 28 (2011) supersedes 1AS 28 (2008). IAS 28
(2011) makes the amendments to apply 1FRS 5 to an investment, or a portion of an
investiment, in an associate or a joint venture that meets the criteria to be classified as held
for sale; and on cessation of significant influence or joint control, even if an investment in an
associate becomes an investment in a joint venture. The amendments have no impact on
financial statements of the Company.

IAS 19 Employee Benefits (amended 2011) - effective for annual periods beginning on or
after January 01, 2013. The amended 1AS 19 includes the amendments that require actuarial
gains and losses to be recognized immediately in other comprehensive income; to
immediately recognize all past service costs; and to replace interest cost and expected return
on plan assets with a net interest amount that is calculated by applying the discount rate to
the net defined benefit liability / asset. This change will remove the corridor method and
eliminate the ability for entities to recognize all changes in the defined benefit obligation and
in plan assets in profit or loss, which currently is allowed under IAS 19. The application of
the amendments to 1AS 19 would result in the recognition of cumulative unrecognized
actuarial loss in other comprehensive income in the period of initial application. As at the
reporting date such cumulative unrecognized actuarial joss amounted to Rs. 1,241.491
million.

There are other new and amended standards and interpretations that are mandatory for the
Company’s accounting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013 but are considered not
to be relevant or do not have any significant effect on the Company’s operations and are
therefore not detailed in these financial statements.

Basis of measurement

These Mnancial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except
that investments classified as held for trading and available-for-sale are measured at fair
values, excluding investment in associate which is carried using equity method and staff
retirement bencfit schemes that are stated at the present value of the obligation.

Share bascd payments

On February 14, 2009, the Government of Pakistan launched a scheme calied Benazir
Employces™ Stock Option Scheme (‘BESOS’) for the employees of state owned entities
including House Building Finance Company Limited. Under the Scheme, a Trust is required
to be formed.

HBFCL Employecs Empowerment Trust was crcated by the GoP to be regulated by the
Board of Trustees represented by the senior officers of Ministry of Finance, Government of
Pakistan and the Company. In last year, the Securities & Lxchange Commission of Pakistan
on receiving representations from some of entities covered under the Scheme and after
having consulted the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan has granted exemption to
such entities from the application of IFRS 2 to the Scheme.

During the year, Ministry of Finance, Government of Pakistan, vide its letter No. F.12(2) IT*-
1/2009-1473 dated November 20. 2012 informed that the Cabinet Committee on Privatization
in their mecting dated 08 November 2012 has excluded the banking sector including the
Company from the purview of BESOS. Thercfore, no actuarial valuation has been conducted
for the year 1o ascertain unaccounted for staff costs on account ol exemption from IFRS-2.

.



2.6

b.

Accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards
requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and rcported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. It
also requires management to cxercise judgment in application of its accounting policies. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ
from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is
revised il the revision alfects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The arcas where various assumptions and estimates are significant to the Company’s
[inancial statements or where judgment was excrcised in application of accounting policies
are as follows:

Classification of investiments

In classifying investments as "held-for-trading” the Company has determined securities
which arc acquired with the intention to trade by taking advantage of short term market /
interest rale movements.

In classifying investments as "held-to-maturity" the Company follows the guidance provided
in SBP circulars on classilying non-derivative [inancial asscts with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity. In making this judgment, the Company cvaluates its intention
and ability to hold such investments to maturity.

The investments which arc not classificd as "held Tor trading” or "held to maturity” are
classified as "available for sale”.

Iimpairment of available-for-sale investments

The Company determines that available-for-sale investments arc impaired when there has
been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost. This determination of
what is significant or prolonged requives judgment. In making this judgment, the Company
evaluates among other factors, the normal volatility in share price. In addition, impairment
may be appropriate when there is evidence of detervioration in the financial health of the
investce, industry and scctor performance, changes in fcchnolopy, and operational and
financing cash flows.

Provision against non-performing advances and debt securities classified as investments

The Company regularly rcviews its loan portfolio and debt securities classified as
investments 1o assess the amount of non-performing loans and advances and debl securities
and provision required there-against. While asscssing ‘this requirement various factors
including the delinquency in the account. financial position of the borrower, the forced sale
value of sccuritics and requirements of the Prudential Regulations are considered.

For portfolio impairment provision on consumer advances, the Company follows the general
provision requirement set out in Prudential Regulations.



d.

2.7

3.1

3.2

Income taxes

While making the estimates for income taxes currently payable by the Company,
management looks at the current income tax laws and the decisions of appellate authorities
on certain issues in the past. There are various matters where the Company’s view differs
with the view taken by the income tax department and such amounts are shown in note 27.1.
In making provision for deferred taxes, estimates of the Company's future taxable profits and
expected reversal of deductible temporary differences are taken into account.

Employces retivement benefit plans

The liabilities for employees retirement benefits are determined as per actuarial advice using
the Projected Unit Credit Method. The actuarial advice involves assumptions about discount
ratcs, cxpected rates of return on assets, future salary increases and future pension increases
as disclosed in note 3 1. Changes in these assumptions in future years may affect the liability /
asset under these plans in future years.

Operating assets, depreciation and amortization and residual values
p 2 > UC]

Estimates with respeet to residual values and uscful lives and pattern of flow of economic
benelits arc bascd on the analysis of the management of the Company. Further, the Company
reviews the vajue of assets for possible impairment on an annual basis. Any change in the
estimates in the future might alfect the carrying amount of respective item of property, plant
and equipment, with a corresponding cffect on the depreciation charge and impairment.

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements arc measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Company operates. The financial statements have been
presented in Pakistani Rupce, which is the Company's functional and presentation currency.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policics applicd in the preparation ol these financial statements
are sct out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all years presented, unless
otherwise stated:

Bank balances

Cash and cash cquivalents

FFor the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash cquivalents include cash and balances
with the SBP and other banks in current and deposit accounts.

Cash in transit

Collection in transit as at the reporting date reccived from the borrowers / partners at the
branches is treated as cash in transit and included in the bank balances.

Lendings to / borrowings {rom financial institutions

The Company enters into lransactions of borrowings (repos) from and lending (reverse
repos) to financial institutions at contracted rates for a specified period of time. These are
recorded as under:

10
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3.4

Sale under repurchase obligations

Securities sold with a simultancous commitment to repurchase at a specified future date
(repos) continue to be recognized in the statement of financial position and are measured in
accordance with accounting policies for investment securities. The counterparty liability for
amounts received under these agreements is included in borrowings from financial
institutions. The difference between sale and repurchase price is treated as mark-
up/return/interest expense and accrued over the term of the related repo agreement.

Purchase under resale obligations

Securities purchased with a corresponding commitment to resell at a specified future date
(reverse repos) arc not recognized in the statement of financial position, as the Company
does not obtain control over the sccurities, Amounts paid under these agreements are
included in lendings to financial institutions. The difference between purchase and resale
pricc is trcated as mark-up/return/interest income and accrued over the term of the related
reverse repo agreement.

Other lendings

Other lendings include term lendings and unsccured lendings to financial institutions. These
are stated net of provision. Mark-up on such lendings is taken to profit and loss account on
time proportionate basis using cifective interest rate method except mark-up on
impaired/delinquent lendings, which arc recognized on receipt basis.

Other borrowings

These are recorded at the procceds received. Mark-up on such borrowings is charged to the
profit and loss account on time proportion basis using cffective intercst method.

Revenue recognition

Rentals / markup / return on regular advances aud investments is recognized on time
proportion basis. Mark up / return on classificd advances and investments is recognized on
receipt basis. Gains and losses on termination and documentation charges are recognized on
receipt basis.

Additionally. under Ghar Aasan Scheme, income is recognized on the basis of share in
rental income and share in appreciation in value ol property.

Interest on housing finance under interest bearing scheme is not recognized since July,
2000 pursuant to the decision of the Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan.

Income from sale of housing projects is recognized using stage of completion of contract.

Income on deposits and investments other than equity instruments is recognized on
accrual basis.

Dividend income, except for dividend on investments in associates accounted for under
equity method {Note 3.5(d)}. is recognized when the Tight to reccive the dividend is
established.

Gain and loss on sale of investinents are recognized in then'proﬁt and loss account.
Advances

Housing finance advance

Advancces are stated net of gencral and specific provisions.

. b
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(a)

(b)

The general and specific provisions are made in accordance with the requirements of the
Prudential Regulations and other directives issued by the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) and
are chareed to the profit and loss account.

Non-performing advances are written off only when all possible courses of action to achieve
recovery have proved unsuccessful. The Company determines write-offs in accordance with
the criteria prescribed by the SBP.

Investments

Investments of the Company, other than investment in associate, are classified as held for
trading, held-to-maturity and available for sale.

Held for trading

These are sccurities which are cither acquired for generating a profit from short-term
fluctuations in market prices, interest rate movements, dealer's margin or are securities
included in a portfolio in which a pattern of short-term profit taking exists.

Held-to-maturity

These are sceurities with {ixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity in respect of
which the Company has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity.

Available-for-sale

These are investments that do not fall under the "held for trading” or "held to maturity”

categories.
Initial measurement

All “regular way” purchases and sales of investiments are recognized on the trade date, i.e.,
the date that the Company commits to purchase or scll the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales arc purchases or sales ol investiments that require delivery of assets within the time
frame generally established by regulation or convention in the market place.

Investments are initially recognized at fair valuc which, in the case of investments other than
held-for-trading. includes transaction costs associated with the investments.

Subsequent measurement

Ileld for trading

Thesc are measurcd at subscequent reporting dates at fair value. Gains and losses on re-
measurement are included in the profit and loss account.

Ileld to maturity
These are mecasured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method, less any
impairment loss recognized to reflect irrecoverable amounts.
Available for sale
Quoted-securitics classilied as available-for-sale investments are measured at subsequent
reporting dates at fair value. Any surplus / deficit arising thereon is kept in a separate account
shown in the statement of financial position below equity and taken to the profit and loss
account when actually realized upon disposal or when the investment is considered to be
impaired.

12



3.6

Unquoted equity sccurities are valued at the lower of cost and break-up value. A decline in
the carrying value is charged to the profit and loss account. The break-up value of these
equity securities is calculated with reference to the net assets of the investee company as per
the latest available audited financial statements. Investments in other unquoted securities are
valued at cost less impairment Josses.

Provision for diminution in the value of securities (except term finance certificates and
sukuks) is made for impairment, if any. Provision for diminution in the value of term finance
certificates is made as per the aging criteria prescribed by the Prudential Regulations issued
by the SBP.

Investment in associate

Investment in associate, where the Company has sipnificant influence, is accounted for using
equity method of accounting wherein the Company's share of underlying net assets of the
investee is recognized as the carrying amount of such investment. Differences between the
amount previously recognized and the amount calculated at each year end is recognized in
the profit and loss account as share of profit or loss of associate. Distribution received out of
such profits is credited to the carrying amount ol investment in associate.

Gains and losses on disposal of investments are decalt with through the profit and loss account
in the year in which they arise.

The carrying values of investments arc revicewed for impairment at each reporting date.
Where any such indications exist that the carrying values excecd the estimated recoverable
amounts, provision for impairment is made through the profit and loss account.

Opcrating fixed assets
Tangible
Property and equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
fosses (if" any). Cost of property and equipment consists of historical cost, borrowing cost
pertaining to erection / construction period of qualilying asscts and other divectly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to working condition. When parts ol an item of property and
equipment have differcnt useful lives, they arc accounted for as scparate items of property
and equipment.

Depreciation on property and equipment is charged to income using the 'Straight Line
Method' over the useful life of the asset at the rates mentioned in note 9.2. The residual
values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate. at
cach reporting date. Depreciation charge commences from the month when the asset is
available for use and continues till the month the asset is discontinued cither through disposal
or retirement.

Subscquent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate

asset. as appropriate. only when it is probable that futurc economic benelfits associated with

the item will flow to thc Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Al
other repairs and maintenance are charged to the profit and loss account when incurred.

Any gain or loss on disposal of the asscts is included in the profit and loss account in the year
of disposal. .

13



3.7

Intangible

Intangible assets having finite useful life are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and
impairment losscs, il any. Intangible assets comprise of cost of computer software and
patents, which are being amortized using the straight-line method over their useful lives as
stated in note 9.3. Amortization is charged from the month of acquisition and up to the month
of deletion. The useful lives and amortization method are reviewed and adjusted, if
appropriale, at each reporting date.

Costs associated with maintaining computer software are recognized as an expense when
incurred.

Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost accumulated up to the reporting date and represents
expenditure incuyred on property and cquipment in the course of construction / development.
These expenditure are translerred to relevant category of property and equipment as and
when the asscts become available for use.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amount of asscts arc reviewed at cach reporting date for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts of the assets may not
be recoverable. If such indication exists, and where the carrying value exceeds the estimated
recoverable amount, asscts are written down to their recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is higher of an asset's lair value less cost to sell and value in use. The resulting
impairment loss is taken to profit and loss account.

A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was
recognized. If that is the casce, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable
amount. That incrcased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior
vears. Such reversal is recognized in profit and loss account.

Taxation

Income tax expense comprises of current and delerred tax. Income tax expense is recognized
in the profit and loss account except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly
in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current

Provision for current taxation is bascd on taxable income at the current rate of tax after
taking into account applicable tax credits, rcbates and cxemptions available, if any. The
charge for current tax also includes adjustments. where considered necessary, relating to
prior years arising from assessments made during the ycar.

Deferred

Deferred tax is recognized using the liability method on.all temporary differences, at the
reporting date between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for the
financial reporting purposes. Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to
apply when the differences are expected to reverse, based on the tax rates thal have been

enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date.
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Deferred tax liability is generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
lax assets is recognized to the extent that 1t 1s probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to
the extent that it 1s no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
whole or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income statement, except in the case of items
credited or charged to cquity, if any, in that case it is included in equity.

Employee benefits

Defined benefit plan

Pension Fund

The Company operates an approved funded pension scheme for all its employees who have
been in full time employment for at least 10 ycars. The scheme provides pension based on
the employees’ last drawn pensionable salary. Contributions are made to the scheme on the
basis of actuarial recommendation. The latest valuation was carried out at December 31,
2012 by actuary using the “Projected Umt Credit’ actuarial cost method, by applying the
following significant assumptions, lor actuarial valuation of the scheme and such valuation
shall be valid for next three years:

2012 2011

Per annum
Discount rate 11.50% 13%
Expected rate of return on investiments/plan asscts 11.50% 13%
Expected rate of increcase in salary 10.50% 12%
Pension increase rate 9% 9%

A portion of the actuarial gains or losses is recognized if the net cumulative unrecognized
actuarial gains or losscs at the cnd ol the previous year exceeds the "corridor” which is
defined as the greater of:

- 10% of the present valuc of the defined benefit obligation at that date (before

deducting plan asscts) and;

- 10% of the fair value of the plan assets at that date,
Post retirement medical benefits
The Company provides post retirement medical facility to an employce in the following event:

- Retirement
- Death/Disability during or after service
- Farty retirement from service

The Company's post retirement medical benefits' structure is as follows:

Executives / officers their spouse and dependent children Entitlement

- for hospitalization One gross pension
- for consultation/pathological test cte. ' One gross pension
- for cost of medicine : : One gross pension
Clerical staff Entitlement

- for hospitalization One gross pension
- for consultation/pathological test cte. One gross pension
- for cost of medicine Two gross pension



C.

3.9

3.10

Non-clerical staff Entitlement

- for hospitalization One and half gross pension
- for consultation/pathological test etc, One and half gross pension
- for cost of medicine Three gross pension

Actuarial valuation of the scheme is carried out every year and the latest valuation was
carried out at December 31, 2012 using ‘Projected Unit Credit” actuarial cost method.
Discount rate of 11.5% (2011: 13%) is used bv the actuary for the valuation.

A portion of the actuarial gains or losses is recognized if the net cumulative unrecognized
actuarial gains or losses at the end of the previous year exceeds the "corridor” which is 10%
of the present value of the defined benefit obligation at that date.

Defined contribution plan

The Company also operates an approved non-contributory Provident Fund scheme for all its
employces. Contributions are made to the [Fund by the employees at the rate of 12 % of their
basic salaries in accordance with the Fund’s rufes.

Employces’ compensated absences
) I

Employees of the Company arce cntitled to carry forward and accumulate their unavailed
leaves. The rules of the lcave encashment scheme state that the employcee shall be entitled to
get 50% of his balance subject to maximum of 180 days i.c. he is allowed to accumulate his
balance upto 365 days. The employces can avail their leave balance in excess of 365 days at
any time as the excess balance will not be encashed at retirement and will be lapsed. The
Company provides for employces compensated absences on the basis of actuarial valuation
in accordance with the requirements of 1AS-19. Actuarial valuation of the scheme is carried
out after every year and the latest valuation was carried out at December 31, 2012.

Forcign currency transactions and translations

Monetary assets and liabilitics in forcign currency are translated into Pakistant Rupees at the
applicable rate of exchange prevailing at the reporting date. Foreign currency transactions
during the ycar are translated into Pakistani Rupee applying the exchange rate at the date of
respective transactions. Gains and losses on translation are included in profit and loss
account currently.

Financial instruments
Financial asscts and liabilities

Financial instruments carried on the statement of financial position include cash and bank
balances, lending's to [inancial institutions, investments, advances, certain receivables,
borrowings from financial institutions, deposits and certain other liabilities. The particular
recognition methods adopted for significant financial asscts and financial liabilities are
disclosed in the individual policy statements associated with them. Financial assets are de-
recognized when the contractual right to future cash flows from the asset expire or is
transferred along with the risk and reward of the asset. FFinancial Tiabilities are de-recognized
when obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. Any gain or
loss on de-rccognition of the financial assets and liabilities i1s recognized in the profit and
loss account ol the current period.
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3.11

3.12

3.13

3.14

3.15

Off setting

Financial assets and financial labilities arc only offset and the net amount is reported in the
financial statements when there is a legally enforceable right to set-off the recognized
amount and the Company intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and to
settle the liabilities simultaneously. Income and expense items of such assets and liabilities
arc also off-set and the net amount is reported in the financial statements.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past cvents, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable cstimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at
each reporting date and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs specific to a significant addition of a project during its construction /
erection period is capitalized. Other borrowing costs are charged to the profit and loss
account as and when incurred.

Earnings per share

The Company prescnts basic and diluted carnings per share (1:PS). Basic EPS is calculated

by dividing the profit or loss, as the case may be, attributable to ordinary shareholders of the
o ?

Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit attributable to ordinary shareholders and

the weighted average number of ordinary sharcs outstanding for the cffects of all dilutive

potential ordinary shares, il any. The Company docs not account for the cflcct of potential

ordinary shares while calculating dilutive loss per share in accordance with the requirements

of the IAS 33 'Earnings per Sharc'.

Dividends and appropriation to reserves

Dividend and appropriation to reserves are recognized in the ycar in which these are

approved, except for the appropriations required by the law, which arc recorded in the period

to which they pertain.

Demand charges

Demand charges (penalties) on late payment by the partners are credited to "Deferred Credit!

account. This amount is utilized for charity purposes after netting of recovery charges as

approved by the Board.

2012 2011
Note Rupees in '000

CASII AND BALANCES WITI TREASURY BANKS
State Bank of Pakistan
LLocal currency current account 4. 63,841 57,718
National Bank of Pakistan
Local currency deposit account 102 85

63,943 57,803
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4.1

5.1

6.1

6.1.1

6.1.2

6.1.3

This represents the amount required to be maintained by the Company in accordance with the
SBP's regulations and carries markup @ 0% (2011: 0%).

BALANCES WITH OTIIER BANKS 2012 2011
Rupees in '000

In Pakistan - Local currency

In transit 8,550 18,704

On deposit accounts 5.1 159,760 430,057

168,310 448,761

These bank accounts carry mark-up at rates ranging from 6% to 9.25% (2011: 5% to 12.5%)

per annum.

LENDINGS TO FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Letters of placement 6.1 - 4,432
Repurchase agreement lending (Reverse Repo) 6.2 181,038 -

181,038 4,432

Letters of placement

Trust Investment Bank Limited (T1B1.) 6.1.1 5.909 5,909
First Dawood Investment Bank Limited (FDIBL) 6.1.2 75,000 75,000
80,909 80,909
Less: Provision for placement with TIBL and IFDIBL 6.1.3 (80,909) (76,477)
- 4432

This represents clean placement made on November 17, 2008 for a period of 14 days at the
mark up rate of 28% per annum, The transaction remained unscttled at maturity and
rescheduling have been made twice, whereas, TIBL complied with the later arrangement till
June 2011, During the year, mark-up accrued upto February 15, 2012 has been received. The
Company has filed suit against TIBL in the banking court for the recovery of outstanding
dues. The Company on prudent basis has maintained 100% provision against outstanding
receivable as at December 31, 2012,

This represents clean placement made on September 12, 2008 for a period of 94 days at the
mark-up rate of 17%. The transaction remained unscitled at maturity and consequently, the
Company had [tled suit against FDIBL for recovery of outstanding principal and obtained a
decree on November 05, 2010, FDIBL has filed appeal against the judgment. As on
December 31. 2012 the case is under execution process. However, the Company on prudent
basis has made provision of full outstanding amount.

2012 2011
Particulars of provision Rupees in '000
Opening balance 76,477 79,801
Provision/ (reversal) during the ycar 4,432 (3,324)
Closing balance 80,909 76,477
18



6.2  Repurchase agreement lending (Reverse Repo)

Pak Oman Investment Company Limited 6.2.1 181,038 )

6.2.1 This represents reverse repo lending at mark-up of 9.25% (2011: nil) per annum and it will
mature on January 04.2013.

6.2.2 Particulars of lending

In local currency 181,038 4,432

In foreign currency - -

181,038 4,432

6.2.3 Sccurities held as collateral against lendings to financial institutions

December 31,2012 December 31, 2011
d - tl
Held by l.urlhcl Yeld by F.ur 1er
Company grven as Company given as
p: collateral  Total collateral Total

Rupees in '000"

Market Treasury Bills 181 038 i 181.038 - - -

{
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7.2

2012 2011

Note Rupees in '000
Investments by segments
Federal Government sccuritics
Market treasury bills 7.2.1 8,681,041 7,314,749
IFully paid up ordinary shares
Unlisted companies 7.2.2 500 500
Term finance certificates, debentures,
bonds and participation term certificates
Unlisted sukuk bonds 7.3 86,200 125,520
Listed sukuk bonds 73 72,027 77,682
Term finance certificates 7.4 148,723 148.400
Other investments ‘
Term deposit receipts 7.5 2.344 352,344
Certificates of investment - Bankers Equity Limited
(BEL) 7.6 101,250 135,000
Investmment in an associate 7.8 35,506 35,506
Total investment at cost 9,127,591 8,189,701
Less: Provision for diminution in valuc of investment 7.10 (240,771) (309,666)
Less: Impairment in associate - Takalul Pakistan Limited (35,5006) (35,506)
Investments (net of provisions) 8,851,314 7,844,529
Surplus / (deficit) on revaluation ot avaitable for sale securitics 4,110 (5,013)
Total invesiments 8,855,424 7,839,516

7.2.1 Market weasury bills arc cligible for discounting with the State Bank of Pakistan. These carry mark up {rom
9.28% 10 11.88% (201 1: 11.65% 10 13.79%) and will mawre upto May 30, 2013,

7.2.2 These represent investment in 66,125 (2011: 66,125) ordinary shares of Rs.10 cach in Resource and

7.3

Engincering Management Corporation Limited.

Particulars of investment in sukuk bonds

Markup

Name of issuer Fate Repayment T'otal nominal value
2012 2011
Rupees in '000
Eden Housing Limited 7.3.1 3 months Quarterly 86,200 125,520
40.000 (2011: 40,000) units KIBOR
Face value: Rs. 2,155 (2011: Rs. plus 2.50%
3,138) each
Maturity date: Junc 29. 2014
Chief Lxecutive Officer: Mr,
Muhammad Amjad
Maple Leat Cement Factory Limited
(MLCFL) 7.3.2
15.562 (2011: 15,562) units 3 months Quarterly 72.027 77,682
FFace value: Rs.4,628 (2011: Rs. KIBOR ‘
4.992) each plus 1%
Maturity date: December 03, 2018
Chicf Exceutive Officer: Mr. Tariq
Sayvced Saigol
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7.3.1 According to the original terms of rcpayment, these sukuk bonds were to be repaid in eight half yearly

installments starting from Junc 2009 and maturing upto December 2012 at markup of six months KIBOR plus
2.50%.

Eden Housing Limited (EHL) paid two instaliments of Rs.25 million each and then defaulted the repayment. On
June 30. 2010, EHL entered into a restructuring arrangement according to which outstanding principal of
Rs.150 million will be repaid on quarterly basis in the ratio of 10%, 25%, 30% and 35% in first, second, third
and fourth year. respectively, with markup of KIBOR plus 2.5% for the first three years and KIBOR plus 3% in
fourth year. EHL has complied the restructured arrangement till the reporting date. However, on prudent basis,
the Company has made provision of 75% of the outstanding principal amount.

7.3.2 According 1o the original terms of repayment. this sukuk was to be repaid in cight equal half yearly installments

7.4

7.6

at markup of six months KIBOR plus 1.70%, principal repayment starting from June 2009 and maturing upto
December 2013.

MLCFL paid markup till May 2009 and defaulted the repayment of both principal and markup. On February
2010, MLCFL entered into a restructuring arrangement with the Company according to which Rs. 2.94 million
of the outstanding markup from June 2009 to November 2009 has been paid and sukuk bonds have been issued
for the remaining markup of Rs.2.81 million. According to the restructuring agreement, new issued sukuk bonds
are repayable in bullet in two ycars at markup of three months KIBOR plus 1%, however, markup payment
would be made on quarterly basis. The principal amount of Rs.75 million is payable in thirty six quarterly
instaliments starting from March 2010 till December 2018.

Mark up from December 2009 to February 2011 aggregating to Rs. 12.634 million was not recognized in the
books of account being doubtful of recovery. However, upon restructuring such amount was agreed to be
converted into markup free debt except for token markup of 0.50% payable with installment. This markup free
debt is to be paid in 24 cqual quarterly instaliments starting from March 2012 till December 2017. The
Company has also not accounted for this markup free debt in its books of account by crediting the income
because of doubts on eventual recovery, and is accordingly kept in memorandum accounts. The recoveries
actually made there-against arc rccognized as incomc on receipt basis. Markup from March to June 201}
amounting to Rs. 5.51 million was receivable upto Scptember 2011, However, Rs. 3.32 million were received
and the remaining balance of Rs. 2.19 million is deferred till December 2012, MILCFL paid all due markup as
per restructuring. HBFCL filed a suit against AMZ Assct and Income Fund to recover the loss on acquisition of
this sukuk amounting Rs. 15.157 million in the Banking Court. The management. on prudent basis, has
provided full outstanding original principal amount against these sukuks.

These represent investment in 30,000 units of Rs. 5,000 cach in Term Finance Certificates (TFCs) of Pak Libya
Holding Company (Private) Limited costing Rs. 148.72 million having maturity on February 07, 2016 and fair
value of Rs.150 million. These TFCs carry mark up at 6 months KIBOR plus 1.60% per annum payable semi
annually whercas principal is payable semi annually commencing from August 07, 2013. The credit rating of
company is AA-. The Deputy Managing Director of the Company is Mr. Khald S.T. Benrjoba.

2012 2011

Particulars of term deposit receipts Rupees in '000
Commercial Banks
National Bank of Pakistan - 250,000
First Women Bank Limited - 100,000
Investment Bank
Asset Investiment Bank Limited 2,344 2,344

2,344 352,344

This represents placement in certificates of investment (COIs) of Rs.200 million for three years and Rs.25
million for threc months made in 1996 and 1998 respectively. BEL défaulted the repayment and went under
liquidation on April 18. 2001 and claims of BEL werc placed before Honorable High Court of Sindh.
Consequently. the Company had made provision of full amount. Upto December 31. 2012, the Company
reccived Rs. 123.750 million (55%) of the invested amount on the directive of the Honorable High Court of
Sindh.
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2012 2011
Rupees in '000 Rupees in '000
Amount Rating Amount Rating
7.7 Quality of Available for Sale Sccuritices
Securities (At market value)
Market Treasury Bills 8,685,151 Sovereign 7.309,736 Sovereign
Sukuks
Listed sukuks - Maple Lcaf Cement Factory Limited - BB/B - BB/B
Unlisted ordinary shares
Resource and Eneineering Management
Corporation Limited - Unrated - Unrated
Total 8,685,151 7,309,736
Note 2012 2011

7.8 Investment in associate - Takatul Pakistan Limited

Number of shares held

Cost of investment - Rupees in '000

Assel - Rupees in '000

Liabilities - Rupees in '000

Revenue - Rupecs in '000

Profit afier tax - Rupees in ‘000

Percentage of investment

Break up value per share - Rupecs

Latest available financial statements - unaudited
Name of Chief Executive

Place of incorporation

Principal business

7.8.1 Carrying value of investment in an associate under equity method

Carrying valuc of investment at January 01
Share in results of an associate before taxation

Share in charge for taxation

Less: Impairment

Carrying value of investment at December 31

7.9  Particulars of provision

Opcening balance
Charge for the year
Reversal during the year

Closing balance

8,700,000 8.700,000
87,000 87.000
500,156 488,902
366,077 354,454

161,066 148,768
8,810 3,907
29% 29%
4.78 4.48

Dec 31,2012 Dec 31, 2011
Dr. Mumtaz  Muhammad

A. Hashmi Umar
(Acting (Acting
CED CEO)

Pakistan

Takaful business

2012 2011
Rupees in "000

309.666 290,210
- 19,520
(68.895) (64)
240,77) 309,666
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Note 2012 2011
7.10 Particulars of provision in respect of type and segment Rupees in '000

Available-for-sale sccurities
Unlisted ordinary shares 500 500
Listed sukuks - Maple Leaf Cement Factory Limited 72,027 77,682

Held-to-maturity sceuritics-

Term deposit receipts - Asset Investment Bank Limited 2,344 2,344
Unlisted sukuks - Eden Housing Limited 64,650 94,140
Certificates of investment (COls)- Bankers Equity Limited 7.6 101,250 135,000

240,771 309,666

8.  ADVANCES - Net

In Pakistan - Local currency

Rental Sharing Schemcs 82&83 2,272,660 2,614,314
Interest Bearing Schemes 8.4 109,534 110,366
Ghar Aasan Scheme 8.5 5,660,990 6,440,625
Pakistan Housing Authority (PHA) . 8.6 218,143 218,143
Gawadar Employces Co-operative Housing Society (GECHS) 8.7 24,388 30,779
Shandar Ghar Scheme 8.8 1,694,817 2,154,826
Unearned income (900,904)|{ (1,125,147)

793,913 1,029.679
Financing facility for Small Builders 8.9 21,196 17,092
Ghar Aasan Flexi Scheme 810 3,630,053 2.739.876
Housing finance to employees 811 518,943 502,907
Partners' death claims (124,421) (17,785)
Transitory district bank accounts - nct 812 (12,5608) 7.883
Advances - gross 13,112,831 13.693.879

Provision for non-performing advances

Specific provision

Rental Sharing Schemcs 2,177.479 2.474.952
Interest Bearing Schemes 109.534 110.366
Ghar Aasan Scheme 609,328 466,960
Gawadar Employvees Co-opcrative Housing Society 24,388 30,779
Shandar Ghar Scheme 98,782 82,662
Financing facility for Small Builders 2,544 1,619
Ghar Aasan I‘lexi Scheme 124,050 44 416
General provision 8.13 79,360 90,061
8.14.3 3,225,465 3,301,815
Advances - net of provision . 9,887.366 10,392,064
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8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

8.6

8.7

2012 2011

Particulars of advances (Gross) Rupees in '000
Short term (up to onc ycar) 3,400,153 3,449,332
Long term (over one ycear) 9,712,678 10,244,547

13,112,831 13,693,879

This represents advances under Profit & Loss Sharing Scheme, Simplified Scheme, New Simplified Scheme
(NSS). Gothabad Scheme and loan to Brecast Industries (Pvt.) Limited. No additional disbursement of advance
under these schemes has been made since the year 2000. Advances under NSS have been provided upto 97%
(2011 1 93%) of the gross advance whercas advances under rest of the schemes are fully provided.

On November 23, 2012, the Exccutive Committec approved special relief package to mitigate the financial
hardships of the borrowers. As per the relicf package, which is valid upto March 31, 2013, on payment of the
entire principal amount, insurance premium, legal/publication charges and 20 percent of demand charges,
partners are entitied Tor waiver of outstanding mark-up and remaining portion of demand charges.

No ncw disbursement has been made under this scheme since the year 1979. In pursuance of the decision of the
Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan, the Company has not accrued interest on these advances since July 01,
2000. All advances under this category has been classified as "Loss” and fully provided.

This scheme was based on Diminishing Musharaka for construction, purchase of houses and replacement of
existing housing advance obtained by applicants [rom another financial institutions - Balance Transfer Facility
(BTF) with maximum [linancing limit of Rs.7.5 million. This advance 1s repayable by the partners in 36 to 240
monthly installments. The net annual rental income is 5% of the total assessed cost of the house, subject to
upward revision ol annual rent on cumulative basis at 25% alier every 3 years. For disbursements after May 26.
2008, constant net annual rental income of 15.5% is charged on daily product basis on the value of outstanding
units, In addition, the Company shares appreciation in the value of the house at rates ranging between 2.5% to
12.5% per annum assessed for various localitics. New disbursement under this scheme has been discontinued
from February 11, 2009. Provision has been made in accordance with the prudential regulations.

Ministry of Finance, Government of Pakistan (Mok) paid Rs. 44 million to the Company during 2009 and the
remaining amount of Rs. 174.14 million during the ycar ended December 31, 2010 against outstanding amount
of advance to PHA as the transaction was guaranteed by the Federal Government Guarantee. However, Mol
through its fctter No. F.10(4)IF-11/2000-594 dated April 17. 2010 instructed Ministry of Housing & Works
(MoH&W) 10 pay this amount to the Company on behalf of PHA and nccessary provision in this regard should
be made in the FFederal Budget. Mo¥ in its letter further advised that the amount of Rs. 218.14 already paid to
the Company be utilized for increase in the paid up capital. Accordingly, this amount has been disclosed as
“Advance against issuc of capital” in these financial statements. Based upon MoF's guarantee to pay the
outstanding balance. no provision has been made against these advances.

As per the arrangement Gawader Employees' Co-operative Housing Society (GECHS) is required to adjust the
principal amount of advance of Rs.47.50 million within thirty three months from December 26, 2006 through
transfer of balance in cach individual casc of the allotiees of house under Ghar Aasan Scheme and under Ghar
Aasan Flexi Scheme alicr completion and handing over possession of houses. Until the transfer of advances to
individuals. GECHS shall pay profit @ 13% per annum. Upto December 31, 2012, advances of Rs.23.217
mithon (2011 : Rs.16.72 million), were transferred to 73 (2011 : 56) individual cascs: i.c., 60 cases (2011: 49)
under Ghar Aasan Scheme. and 13 cases (2011: 7) under Ghar Aasan Flexi Scheme amounting to Rs.19.925
million (2011: 15.56 million) and Rs.3.29 million (2011: 1.16 million) respectively.

Final profit and loss sharing will be subject to inal settlement of accounts which shall be made within three
months of the completion of the project which will be audited by the person authorized by the Company. The
advance 1s sccured against mortgage of land. However. the Company has made provision of full amount on
prudent basis. '
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8.8

8.9

8.10

8.12

8.13

Advances under Shandar Ghar Scheme for renovation of houses only with maximum financing limit of Rs.2.5
mitlion are based on Murabaha approved by the Board of Directors on January 20, 2004 . The advance is
repayable by the partners in 12 to 120 monthly instaliments. The Murahaba profit varies from 8% to 13.5%
(2011 : 8% to 13.5%) per annum. New disbursement under this scheme has been discontinued from February
11, 2009. Provision has been made in accordance with the prudential regulations.

Advances under 'Finance facility for Small Builders' for construction of individual houses and apartments for
sale 1o the gencral public with maximum financing limit of Rs.7.5 million is based on Musharaka financing
approved by the Board of Directors in August 2007 . This advance is for a period of 12 to 18 months,
extendable for further 3 months. to be repaid at the end of the tenor along with the profit ranging from 13% to
18% (2011 : 13% to 18%) per annum, or is transferable to the buyer of the house/apartment under Ghar Aasan
Scheme. New disbursement under this scheme has been discontinued from November 17, 2009. Provision has
been made in accordance with the prudential regulations.

Advances under Ghar Aasan Flexi Scheme for construction, renovation and purchase of house and replacement
of existing housing facility — Balance Transfer Facilities (BTF) with maximum financing limit of Rs.10 million
is based on Diminishing Musharaka. This advance is rcpayable by the partners in 36 to 240 monthly
installments. The rental income for salaricd person and business person is one year KIBOR with a spread of
3.25% and 3.50% respectively per annum.

There are two investments plans under this scheme: variable installment plan and fixed investment plan. New
disbursement under variable installment plan has been discontinued effective [rom July 27, 2009. Provision has
been made in accordance with the prudential rcgulations.

Housing advance is given to ecmployces as per the terms of employment for purchase of land, renovation or
construction of houses, at concessional rates. These advances arce sccured against the cquitable mortgage of the
property.

This net balance mainly includes unpresented cheques of disbursements and unidentified collections in bank
accounts at district and zonal oflices.

General provision against advances has been determined in accordance with the requirements of Prudential
Regulations (R-4) issued by the State Bank of Pakistan on regular portfolio of consumer financing.
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8.14.2 Non-performing advances arc classified and disclosed in substandard, doubtful and loss category based on

number of instaliments outstanding from the customers. The management is of the view that this is the
appropriate method for ascertaining classification of advanccs.

8.14.3 The SBP vide BSD Circular No. 10 of 2009 dated October 20, 2009 had allowed banks/DFls to avail benefit

8.16

8.18

of forced sales valuc of collaterals mortgaged with them while dctermining provisioning requirement against
non-performing financing. During the current year, SBP vide BSD Circular No.] of 2011 dated October 21,
2011 has made certain amendments in the Prudential Regulations for Consumer Financing with respect to
allowing additional benefit of forced sales value (FSV) of mortgage properties held as collateral against
housing finances. According to the said circular;-the-impact on profitability due to availing FSV benefit shall
not be available for payment of cash dividend or stock dividend. As at December 31, 2012 the Company has
availed benefit of forced sales value amounting to Rs. 2,707 million (2011: Rs.2,943.06 million). Had FSV
beneflt of BSD Circular No.1 of 2011 not been taken, loss for the year before taxation would have been
increased by Rs. 2.707 million.
2012 2011
Note Rupees in 000

Particulars of write offs
Against provisions 5,000 43,816
Directly charged to profit and loss account

5,000 43,816

Write offs Rs. 500,000 and above 630 17,965
Write offs below Rs. 500,000 4,370 25,851
8.16 5,000 ° 43816

Relief to rehabilitate the economice life in Khyber Pakhtunkhwa, FATA and PATA - Claim for total
write off loans in Dir lower & upper and Shangla Districts

State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) vide 1 and SMEFD Circular No. 02 of 2012 dated February 28, 2012 has
informed that Prime Minister has approved to extend the facility of writing off of total loans outstanding as on
December 31. 2009 to the residents of Lower Dir, Upper Dir and Shangla Districts of Malakand Division
under the fiscal relief to rehabilitate the cconomic life in Khyber Pakhtunkhwa, FATA and PATA. SBP
directed the Banks. DFIs and MITBs to bear the cost of such write offs to the extent of amount held into
provision against non performing advances and interest in the suspense account, while the rest of the cost (i.c.
outstanding principal amount of performing and for NPL portfolio, non performing less provisioning amount)
will be reimbursed by the Government of Pakistan as subsidy. SBP further directed to release all the securities
/ charges held against such advances and issuc necessary clearance certificate to concerned borrowers soon
after the receipt of funds from SBP.

During the year, the Company carried out exercise based on the criteria mentioned in the Circular and
identified 96 partners of the said districts with principal outstanding of Rs. 6.96 million, provision for non-
performing loans of Rs. 5.00 million and interest and other charges receivable of Rs. 10.33 million. Thus, the
Company claimed and received Rs. 1.93 million from Government of Pakistan on April 19, 2012 and
recorded the same in the books of account.

Particulars of loan and advances to Directors, Associated Companies, clc.

Debts due by dircctors, exccutives or other officers of the Company or any of them cither severally or jointly
with any other persons: -

2012 201)
Rupees in '000
Balance at beginning of ycar 605,382 586.635
Loans granted during the year 121,936 132,007
Repayments / adjustments (102,4806) (113,260)
Balance at end of year 624,832 605,382

There were no debis given 10 any companies or firms in which the dircectors of the Company are interested as
directors. partners or in casc of private companies. as members during the year.
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9.1

9.2

2012

2011

Note  --——- Rupees in '008 -
OPERATING FIXED ASSETS
Capital work-in-progress 9.1 144.30] 77.454
Property and equipment 9.2 116,236 135,229
Intangible assets 93 2,963 1,833
263,500 214,516
Capital work-in-progress
Civil works 144,064 77.217
Software designing and development 237 237
144,301 77,454
Property & eguipment
Frechold Office Furniture  Electrical Office Computer Motor Total
land premises and installations equipment ecquipment vehicles
fixtures
As at January 01, 2011
Cosl 11,640 80.729 79.440 41.390 38,448 109,389 64,921 425,957
Accumulaled depreciation - (43.930) (20,813) (21.508) (21,031) (107,456) (61,634) (276,374)
Nel book value 11.640 36,799 58.625 19.852 17,417 1,933 3,287 149,583
Year ended December 33,2011
Opening net book value 11.640 30.799 38.625 19.882 17,417 1,933 3.287 149.583
Additions - 219 1.026 1.187 1375 1.839 133 5.579
Disposals
Cost - - (139) - (201) (199) (3.649) (4.188)
Deprecintion - - 120 - 189 199 3,218 3,726
- - (19 - (12) - (431) (462)
Adjustment ’
Cost - - (G20 (5) 2,521 2 404 2.881
Depreciation - (73) (362) 176 (358) 2.768 (108) 1,843
- (73) (103) 171 1.963 2,770 296 4.724
Deprectation Charge - (1,013) (7.822) (2,898) (5,079) (3,194) (1,159 (24.195)
Closing net book vahue 11.640 32,902 51407 18.342 15,164 3.3438 2,126 135,229
As at December 31, 201)
Cost 11.640 80.948 80.280 42,572 41943 111.031 61,809 430.229
Accumulated Depreciation - (48.,040) (28.879) (24.230) (26.479)  (107.683) (39.683) (295.000)
Net book value 11.640 32,902 51407 18,342 15.464 3,348 2,126 135,229
Year ended December 31,2012
Opening net book value 11640 32,902 51.407 18.342 15.4064 3.348 2,126 135.229
Additions - - A4 Y 1.307 4.435 - 5.795
Disposals
Cost - - - - (17) {63)] (3.927) (4.037)
Depreciation - - - - 34 36 3.379 3,449
- - - - (13 (27) (518) (588)
Adjustments (9.2.1) ’
Cost - - - - - - (44) (44)
Depreciation - - - - - - (116) (116)
- - - - - (160) {160y
Depreciation Charge - (4.047) (7.899) (2.958) (5.038) (3.512) (586) (24.010)
Clasing net book value 11.640 28,855 43,552 15,393 11,720 4,244 832 116,236
As at December 31,2002
Cost 11,640 80.948 80.330 42,581 43,203 115.403 57.838 431,943
Accumulated Depreciation - (32.093) (36.77%) (27.188) (31.483)  (111.139) {37.006) (315.707)
Net book value 11.640 28.855 43,552 15.393 L 11,720 4,244 832 116,236
Annual rate of
depreciation (%) - 3 10 10 15-33.33 33.33 20
9.2, This represents adjustmems i order 1o reconeile assels as per subsidiary and general ledger.
9.2.2 The gross carrving value of fully depreciated assets sl in use amounied to Rs. 242 mitlion (2011 183.91) million
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9.2.3

9.3

9.3.1

10.

Disposal of operating fixed assets

Net .
N 51 AY Particular
Particulars Cost book Sale (“.nn on !odc of Particular of
proceeds disposal disposal buyers
value A
----------- Rupees in "000 ~---~---vun--
Items having cost less than one million
rupees or book value less than two
hundred and fifty thousand rupees
Computer Lquipment 63 26 26 - Settlement Ex-employce
Office equipment 47 14 15 1 Sctlement Ex-employec
Motor Vchicles ’
Mr. Muhammad
- Suzuki cultus - AMH 814 595 - 404 404 Auction  Wahced Khan
Mr. Muhammad
- Suzuki hiroof - GP 6048 461 - 327 327 Auction  Nafecs
- Suzuki hiroof - CN 8597 461 - 411 411 Auction  Mr. M. Yameen
Mr. Muhammad
- Honda CD 70 - KCS 3116 30 - 10 10 Auction Nafces
Mr. Salman
- Honda CD 70 - KCS 5118 30 - 8 8 Auction  Saghir
Hems  having  cost more than one
million rupees or book value more
than two hundred and fifty thousand
Motor Vehicles
Mr. Muhammad
- Hino tuck - GA 4857 1175 274 2.000 1.726 Auction  Aamir
Mr. Muhammad
- Hino truck - GA 1858 1175 274 2.000 1.726 Auction  Aamir
2012 1.037 588 5.201 4.613
2011 4,188 462 3.215 2.753
2012 2011
Note Rupees in "0
Intangibles
Net earrying value
Balanee at beginning ol the year 1.833 833
Additions at cost 2,152 1 839
Adjustments (9.2.1) (13) _
Amortisation charge for the year 9.3.1 (1.009) (839)
Balance at end of year 2963 ig3s
Gross carrying value
Cost 9.551 7412
Accumulated amortization (6,588) (5.579
Net book value 2.963 1833
The cost is being amortized over o period ol 3 years.
OTHER ASSETS
Income/mark-up acerued in local corrency
Invesuments 10.694 11182
Advances -53.650 21512
Advance lor purchase of land - housing projects 140.1 50.470 50.470
Advances. deposits. advance rent and other prepayments 110.753 109.760
Advance Financial Relief to Employees 43,831 .
Advance taxation (payments less provisions) 10.2 262.989 79255
Other recetvable against advances 21.764 19.499
Receivable from pension lund 312 - 85.112
Assets acquired Irom Pakistan Relugees Rehubilitation
IFinance Corporation (PRRIFC) 10.3 - _
554.151 380.090
Less: Provision held against other assets 10.1.1 (50.470) (50.470)
, 503.68) 329.620
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10.1

10.1.1

1.2

10.3

It represents an advance payment of 25% of the cost of two pieces of land measuring 163 acres situated in Gawadar.madce in
2007. The Company intended 1o construct Jow cost houses on this land to promote affordable housing facilities 10 low income
groups of the residents of Gawadar. However, there has been no further development in this regard during last four ycars and
the chances of obtaining these plots of land arc remote. Therclore, the management on prudent basis, has made provision
against doubtful recovery of this amount.

Note 2012 2011
Particulars of provision against other assets Rupees in '000
Balance at bepinning of the year 50,470 -
Charpe for the year - 50,470
Balance at end of the year 50,470 50,470

This include advance tax ol Rs.418.422 (2011: Rs. 4.511.71) million which is nct off with the provision for tax ot Rs.155.433
(2011: Rs. 4.432.46) million.

As dirceted vide SRO 499(1)/80 dated May 13. 1980 by Finance Division - Government of Pakistan. the Company (formerly
HBJFC) took over assets and habilities of PRRFC. Further. as per the dircetive of the Government of Pakistan all asscts and
liabilitics are shown distinctively as below. However. the Company does not have any control over these assets and liabilitics.

2012 2011
Rupees in '000
Pakistan Refugees Rehabilitation Finance Company

Assets
Fixed assets 1 1
Cash and bank balances 518 518
Investments 253 253
l.oans and advances i 16,583 16.583
Inter-centre adjustment : 2,432 2.432
Other receivables 1.992 1.992
Sundry debtors 200 200
Advanees. deposits and prepayments 227 227
22,206 22.206
Provision for bad and doubtiul debts (2.579 (2.579)
19.627 19.627
Liabilities
Sundry creditors 93 93
Accrued expenses 38 38
Return on capital 7.37) 7.371
Other liabilities 129 129
7,631 7.631
Net assets 11.996 11,996
REPRESENTED BY
Capital 16.000 16.000
Accumulated loss (4.004) (4.004)
11.996 11.996
BORROWINGS
In Pakistan - local currency 111 11.695.300 11.992.300
Outside Pakistan - forcign currency - -
11.695,300 11.992.300
Detail of borrowings
Secured
Borrowings from Siate Bank of Pakistan - PLS credit lines 1111 11.242.300 11.242.300
Sukuk bonds 11.1.2 433.000 750.000
11.695.300 11.992.300

The eredit lines [rom SBP are sceured by certificates issued by the Company under House Building FFinance Corporation (Issue
and Redemption of Certificates) Rules. 1982 that are guaranteed by the Government ol Pakistan (GoP).

a
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11.1.2

11.1.2.

The eredit Lines are repayable as folJows and are on profit and loss sharing basis as mentioned in note 26:

Credit line J\muun'l of credit Repayment duc on Status
number lines
Rupees in '000
58 1,400.000 June 25, 2006 Due
39 1,833,000 September 07. 2007 Duc
60 1.850.000 Junc 30, 2008 Duc
6l 2.406.000 August 08. 2008 Due
62 2,200.000 November 10, 2010 Due
63 1.053.300 | July 12,2011 Duc
64 500,000 Iebruary 26. 2012 Due

11,242,300

As per the above schedule. eredit line Nos. 58 to 64 were payable on respective repayment date. but were not paid. In
pursuance of Company's request. the SBP through its letter no. SMED Refinance 900/06-2071 dated September 02. 2006
advised the Company to repay the credit lines as per the schedule and claimed markup @ 9.5% for utilization of the said
amount after the due date till the date of their payment. Currently. negotiation with SBP for rescheduling of the borrowing and
waiver ol mark-up are in process. However, as o matter of prudence. the management has made accrual of entire amount of
markup on overdue credit lines ¢ 9.5% per annum. Subsequent 1o period end. it has been decided between the representatives
ol SBP. SECP and the Company to convert the Company's total outstanding debt of Rupees 11.242 billion payable along with
markup payable of Rupees 2.448 billion (aggregately Rupees 13.69 billion) in the equity of the Company. morefully explained
in Note 1.1,
Note 2012 201t
Rupees in '000
Sukuk certificates - Seeured

Balance as at January 01 750.000 1.050.000
Redemption during the year (297,000) (300,000)
Closing balance as at December 31 453,000 750,000
Redemptions

Not later than one year 303.000 300.000
Later than one year and less than five years 150,000 450,000
Balance as at December 31 453,000 750,000

Sukuk certificates - Secured

Sukuk certificates represents three million certilicates issued to various banks and other lnancial institutions under musharaka
arrangement, The face value of cach Sukuk certilicate is Rs. 5.000. These certificates are secured against [irst charge created
by way of hypothecation over specific assets with 25% sceurity margin and are subject to mark-up rate of average six months
KIBOR plus 1% per annum. Rentals including redemption ol principal are payable on six monthly basis between November
2009 10 May 2014,

Trustee

In order to protect the interest of the certificate hofders. o non-banking finance company (First Dawood Investment Bank
1.imiled) has been appointed as a trustee under the trust deed dated April 11, 2008. In case the Company defaults on any of its
obligation. the trustee may enforce the Company's obligation in accordance with the terms of the trust deed.

2012 2011
Note Rupees in '000
OTHER LIABILITIES
Mark-up / return / interest payable on borrowings
- in local currency 12.1 7.692 14.325
Accrued expensces 248,197 198.894
Payable 1o pension fund 312 18.847 -
Post retirement medical benefits payable 31.2 678.276 566.929
Employces' compensated absences payable 449.774 357.366
Refundable 1o customers against advances 17.830 45,138
Payable to SBP i2.2 2.897.082 1.837.621
Insurance premium payabte 123 11.478 62.363
Deterred credits 12.4 1.324.253 1.185.474
Reimbursement of claims by Government ol Pakistan ) 12.5 579 219.400
Salary compensation and benevolent fund .
pavablc to VSS optecs 11.645 32,103
Retention money payable 5.339 53.879
Application fee- Gawadar Project 3.887 3.915
Agents' sceurity deposit 985 1.185
Others 7.248 }.546
\ 5.683.114 1.530.138
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12.2.1

12.2.2

This represents mark-up accrued on sukuk issued to various financial institutions as mentioned in note 11.1.2.

2012 2011
Payable to SBP --—- Rupees in "000 ----
Balance at January 1 1,837,621 775,296
Share af (loss)/protit 261 (1,290) 94,443

1,836,331 869.739
Less: Markup acerued on SBP credit hines AN 1,060,751 967,882
Balance al December 31 2,897,082 1,837,621
¥ree reserves 12.2.2 (1,299,015) (1,070,466)

The term of agreement(s) in respect of various credit lines provided by the SBP stipulate that the funds made available 10 the Company shalt
be used exclusively to finance housing activity on the basis ol partnership in profit and loss and surplus funds, if any, shall be invested with
prior consultation with SBP. Over years. the funds made available by SBP for various terms have been rolled over and in consequence,
have become part of the overall funds ol the Company. While the Company has allocated to the SBP profits on year to year basis cmanating
from its housing finance activities, however no prolit had been allocated for income earned from investment activities carried out from the
overall surplus funds available with the Company from time te time, As a result ol negotiations with SBP on the issue. SBP vide its letter
No. BPD (pu-47)/900/(14170) /5687/2002 dated October 07. 2002 restricted its claim i respect of share of prolit [rom the invested surplus
Tunds effective from grant of approval by SBP vide letter No. BPD (pu-47)/900(20182)/1124/2002 dated June 26, 2002. Accordingly, share
of profit payable to SBP on surplus funds has been acerued alier June 26, 2002, FHowever. alter the repayment of SBP eredit line number
56 the funds made available by SBP has equaled the amount ol investments in housing [inance. Thus, the allocation of profit to SBP on
surplus funds is no more effective from May 04, 2004 as communicated to SBP through letler No. HBFC / HOK / CM / (TRY) / SBP /
2004/2362 dated June 28, 2004 and agreed by SBP through letter No. BPD (PV-47) 7/ 900/I°B/(28880)/04-15507 dated December 09, 2004,
and accordingly no profit has been accrued thereatier,

The Campany has been computing the share ol SBI? by allocaling 1otal income carned related 1o profit and loss sharing schemes and income
related 1o other operations is allocated 1o the Company. Similarly other expenses are also allocated in relation 10 the income. Whereas, the
administrative expenses and other charges were being apportioned in the ratio 98:02 between SBP and the Company.

SBP vide its letter No. BPRD(RPD-01)/2010-5414 dated August 06, 2010 communicated its working for SBP’s share in the profit and loss
ol the Company for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2008, ‘T'he basis of the working was that SBP is entitled for share of allocated
income and expenses of the Company in the ratio of active credit lines and overdue credit ines Further, for the year 2009 and onwards
SB3P dirceted that the Company's activitics under other operations have been inereasing for which allocation of administrative expenses
under prolit and loss sharing schemes and other operations should be allocated as per their weight in total average carning assets.

The terms of agreement between SBP and the Company lor credit lines provided by SBP stipulates that in case of net loss, SBP will share
the loss, net ol free reserves and credit balances. it any, in the profit and loss account of the Company in the same ratio as for sharing
profits.

Monthly insurance premiwm is payable to State Life Insurance Corporation ol Pakistan {SLICY against the insurance ol outstanding dues
Irom the pariners in case of their death or total disablement and insurance premium payable 1o Takaful Pakistan Limiled aganst insurance
of mortgage property. The amount of these premiums are recoverable from partners in their monthly installments

2012 2011
Deferred credits ' Note ---- Rupees in "000 -
Demand charges - net of recovery expenses
Demand charges recovered 1240 & 12.4.5 625.149 615303
I.ess: Recovery charges paid at December 31
Balance at January 01 (100,640} (81.482)
Lixpense for the year {837 (19.158)
Balance at December 31 (101,477 (100,640)
523.672 514,663
Prolivcommission received from State Life Insurance
Corporation - net of death claims 1242 208,562 208,562
Provision against insurance receivable from partners (183,036) (190,714)
25,526 17.848
Unidentihiable insurance premium contribution reeeived
from borrowers / partners during prior years 12.4.3 52,503 52,503
Property insurance - (12,495) (12.495)
: 40.008 40,008
Prolit received on investment from delerred eredits 1244 & 1245 840,049 715455
1.429,255 1,287.974
Ponations 1246 (105.000) (102,500
f 1.324.255 | 185,474
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12.4.1

12.4.2

12.4.3

12.4.4

12.4.5

12.4.6

13.
13.1

13.2

This represents demand charges recovered after June 30, 2000 net of recovery expenses. translerred to this account in accordance with
the requirement of section 24(20)(d) of the House Building Finance Corporation (HBFC) Act. 1952 as amended by the HBFC
(Amendment) Ordinance, 2001, The Board of Dircclors has approved that this amount will be used for meeting recovery expenses and
for charitable purposes.

According to the agreement with SLIC, death claims lodged afier the profit / commission distribution will be adjusted by the
Company through profit / commission charged to deferred credit account.

This represents amount received in prior years™ on account of Group Insurance Premium [rom individual borrowers / pariners on
account of rate differences. As at December 31. 2000 these amounts were pending allocation 1o individual partners / borrowers. Duc
10 non-availability of the relevant records. these amounts have been translerred 1o this account after approval of the Board ol Dircclors
of the Company and will be used for relicl of widows. orphans and incapacitated partners which are not covered by any other reliel
package or group insurance policy.

This represents investment income atlocation against the income carned up 1o the current year by the Company in respeet of the items
reflected in the deferred credit account using average yicld.

Movement in demand charges and profit received

Demand Charges - net of Profit received on investment

recovery expenses from deferred credit

2012 2011 2012 2011

------------------------ Rupees in '000

Balance as at January 01 615,303 567,488 715,455 529.304
Profit credited during the year - - 124 594 186.151
Demand charges recovered 9,846 17,815 - -
Balance as at December 31 625,119 615,303 840,049 715.455

During the year donation of Rs. 2.5 million is paid 10 [BA Endowment Fund, in 2011 Rs. 2.5 million was paid to Sindh Institute of
Urology and Transplantation (SIUTY and in 2010. Rs. 100 million were donated 1o Prime Minister Flood Relief Fund.

lFederal Government paid Rupees 912,803 million to the Company during the vears 2009 and 2010 for adjusting the outstanding
advances of partners’ at earthquake alltected arcas. Based upon an independent study, the Company adjusted advances of 4.400
partners amounting to Rupces 694.018 million during the preceding year, against which the amount claimed from Federal
Government was Rupees 724,683 million. After such adjustment. the Company relunded the unutilized remaining balance of Rupecs
218.784 million to the Federal Government.

SHARE CAPITAL

Authorized Capital

2012 2011 2012 2011
Number of Shares Rupees in '000
600.000,000 600.000.000  Ordinary sharcs of Rs.10/- cach 6.000,000 6.000.000

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital
Ordinary shares of Rs 10 cach:

6 6 - Iully paid in cash - -
300.000.000 300.000.000 - Issued for consideration other than cash 3.000.000 3.000.000
100,000 . 100.000 - Sharces issucd for consideration on cash 1.000 1.000
300.100.006 300.100.0006 3.001.000 3.001,000
Pattern ol share holding:

187.562.500 187.362.500 - FFederal Government 1.875.625 1.875.625
112.537.500 112.537.500 - State Bank of Pakistan 1,125,375 1.125.375
300.100.006 300.100.006 3.001.000 3.001.000
34

As al December 31,2012, the Company has equity of Rs. 2.322.595 million against the minimum required equily of Rs. 6
billion as prescribed by the SBP Yor DIIs through BSD Circular No.19 dated September 05. 2008, The management of the
Company is considering various alternatives to meet the capital requirement. In this regard. several meetings were held with the
Ministry of Finance, Government of Pakistan and SBP to injeet further capital and 1o convert overdue SBP credit lines into
cquity as stated in Note 1.1,

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) ON REVALUATION OF ASSETS . 2012 2011
Rupees in "'000
Available-for-sale securities

Government sccurilies 14.1 4.110 {5.013)




14.1

15.
15.1

16.

19.1

Movement of surplus / (deficit) on revaluation of assets

Opening balance (5.013) (18.759)
Surplus during the year 9.123 13.746
Closing balance 4,110 (5,013)

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Contingencies

Claims not acknowledged as debt 47.990 47.990

In the year 1995, the Company had cntered into an agreement with a couricr service company. Subscquently. duc to
unsatisfactory service by the courier service company. the Company terminated the contract. The courier service company
claimed indemnity of loss of Rs.39.89 million and hiled a suil for recovery from the Company which is pending in the High
Court of Sindh. The legal advisor of the Company is confident that the Company has @ strong casc and no economic outflow is
expected.

In the year 2008, the Company entered into an agreement with a hospital in Karachi for providing medical facilitaies /
treatment Lo employees of the Company and their dependents. The said hospital lodged a claim of Rs.8.10 million against the
Company which include bills of the persons who were not referred by the Company to the said hospital, as these were neither
the Company's employees nor their dependents. Currently. the case is pending for adjudication at Honorable Sindh High Court.
The Iegal advisor of the Company is confident that the Company has a strong casc and no cconomic outflow is expecled.

2012 2011

Commitments Note Rupees in '000
Land for Housing projects-Gawadar 10 149.700 149.700
Land for Gawadar office : 9.750 9.750
Loans sanctioned but not disbursced 80.542 62.527
Rental due under operating lease agreements in respect ol vehicles
Not later than one year 1.588 6.896
Later than onc year bul not Tater than five years 7.166 9.148
Design. supervision and construction contract for Islamabad project 169.900 177.507
Liquity investment in Pakistan Mortgage Refinance Company 200.000 200.000
RENTAL/MARK-UP/RETURN/INTEREST EARNED
On advances 1o customers 1.643.331 1.816.450
On investments in sceurities:

Available for salc 759.785 6(03.299

Ield to maturity 11.286 49.347
On deposits with financial institutions 31.271 18.236
On sceuritics purchased under resale agreements 55.828 140.381
On clean lending 880 2.845

2.535381 2.630.558
RENTAL/MARK-UP/RETURN/INTEREST EXPENSLED
Markup on sukuk certificates 79.877 132.544
Markup on SBP credit lines Il §.060.751 967.882
1.140.628 1.100.426
REVERSALS OF PROVISION MADE AGAINST NON
- PERFORMING ADVANCES

Reversal ol provision against advances B4 &20.2 71.350 665.008
RECONCILIATION ADJUSTMENTS
Tagged accounts scitled 19.1 - (4.691)

This represents adjustment made in head office records for accounts closed at district oflices while balance appearing at head
ollice records. R
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20.

20.1

22.)

23.

24,

25.

Note 2012

2011

Rupees in "000

REVERSAL DUE TO RELIEF PACKAGE AND REPROCESSING ADJUSTMENTS

Reliel package and scttlement scheme
Reprocessing and closing adjustment of housing finance

20.1 2,772 17.680
20.2 245,797 283,864
248,569 301,544

This represents reversal of rental income which was credited to profit and loss account in previous years. This reversal has been made
as a result of relief package and scttiement scheme announced by the Board of Directors as explained fully in Note 8.3 10 the financial

statements.

This represents reversal of income recognized in previous ycars based on reconciliations of collection and disbursement.
Corresponding figures has been revised by adjustment against ‘Reversal of provision made on non-performing advances' amounting to

Rs. 43.816 million for better presentation. In previous years, "Provision for non-performing advances' was reversed against advances
written-ol T and such write-oft was expensed out separately under this head of account instead of adjusting against the provision.

OTHER INCOME

Inspection and application fee

Gain on sale of operating fixed asscts
Miscellancous

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Salarics, allowances, ctc.

Charge for defined benefit plan - pension
Post retirement medical benefits
Employees' compensated absences
Repairs and maintenance

Legal and professional

Rent, taxes. insurance, electricity, cte.
Stationery and printing
Advertisement and publicity
Auditors' remuncration

Depreciation

Amortization of intangiblc assets
Traveling and conveyance

Paostage and tclephone

Fntertainment

Security guard charges

Subscription and publication
Commission against recoveries
Others

Auditors’ remuneration

Audil fee

alf yearly review

Special certification, internal control over financial reporting.
other reviews and sundry advisory fee

Out-of-pocket expenscs

VOLUNTARY SEVERANCE SCIIEME (VSS) - net
Salary compensation

Charge for defined benefit plan - pension

Post retirement medical bencefits

Emplovees' compensated absences

Benevolent fund

Voluntary Scverance Scheme -gross

Amount recetvable from Government for VSS charged ot

L.ess: Government grant

Voluntary Severance Scheme -net

OTHER PROVISIONS

Provision against Gawadar Land

Doubtful reecivable of insurance premium from partners

OTHER CHARGES
Penalty imposcd by State Bank of Pakistan
Commission and bank charges

ot

2012 201)
Rupees in '000

14,227 16.182

9.2.3 4.613 2,753
60,298 24,903

79,138 43,838

798.821 892,533

31.2 221,308 209,176
124,440 104.021

98,423 90

36,570 40,724

19.778 30.440

31.660 30.493

11,528 13.851

9,77} 22.622

22.1 2,735 2.960
9.2 24,040 24,195
9.4 1,014 839
13,364 15,237

13.744 12,173

1.588 2,719

2325 2.035

711 836

372 1.685

130,432 4,103

1,542,624 1,410,732

1.100 1.100

385 385

1.250 1,250

- 225

2,735 2,960

- 117,689

117.689

- 300.000

- 417.689

- 417,689

- 50.470
(817) (969)

(817) 49.501

334 355

8.379 6.685

8.913 7,040
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26.

SBP SHARE OF PROFIT

26.1 Alloeation of income / expenses to Interest

Bearing Scheme and PLS Scheme

December 31, 2012

Deeember 31, 2011

Remal/Mark-up/Return/Interest carned
On loans and advanccs to customers
On investments in securitics:
Available for sale
Held to maturity
On deposits with financial institutions
On sccuritics purchased under resale agreements

On clean lending

Relating to Relating to

Relating to

Relating to

Rental/Mark-Up/Return/Interest expensed

Markup on SBP credit lines

On sukkuk

Net mark-up / interest income

Reversal / (provisions) made against non
performing advances

Reversal made for diminution in value of’
investments

Provision for diminution in valae of lendings to
limancial institwtions

Reconciliation adjustments

Amount reccived from GoP against remission of
advances 10 widows

Reversal of rental income due to relief package
Net mark-up / interest income afier

provisions and relief package

Non mark-up / interest income

Inspection and application fee
Gain on sale ol ixed assets

Miscellancous

Non Mark-Up/interest expenscs
Administrative expenscs

VSS loss - net

Other provisions / wrile olls

Other charges

Total non-markup/interest expenses
Opcrating (loss) / profit for the year

Sharce in results of assoctate belore taxation

{1.oss) / protit for the year belore SBP share

Share of State Bank ol Pakistan

Less: share of free reserves and credit balance

Credit balance

(Loss) / profit from PLS schemes available for sharing

SBP's share

Share of State Bank of Pakistan in Profi

Tots R Tots
otal PLS schemes ()lhclr Fow PLS schemes olhc'r
operations operations
I Rupees "000" - - - - ecmmm i >
------------ Restated «---e---m-
1643331 1.643331 - 1.816.450  1,816.450 -
759,785 - 759.785 603.299 - 603.299
414286 _ 44.286 49347 - 49347
31.271 B 31.271 18.236 - 18,236
55.828 _ 55.828 140,381 - 110381
880 . 880 2.845 - 2.845
2.535.381 1643331 892.050 2,630,558 1.816.450 814,108
(1.060.751)|  (1.039.536) (21.213) (967.882) (918.524) (19,358)
(79.877) - (79.877) (132,5441) - (132,544)
(1,140,628)  (1.039,536) (101.092)  (1.100126) (918,524) (151,902)
1,.394.753 603,795 790.938 1,530,132 867,926 662.206
71.350 71,350 - 665,008 665,008 -
68,895 - 68.895 (19.456) - (19.456)
(1.432) - {1.1432) 3.324 - 3.324
- - - 4.691 4.691 -
865.074 865.074 -
(248.569) (248.569) - (301,544) (301.544) R
1.281.997 126,576 855.421 2.747.229 2.101.155 646,074
14.227 14,227 16.182 16.182 -
4.613 4.613 2.753 - 2753
60.298 - 60.298 24903 - 24903
79.138 14,227 6491 413,838 16,182 27.656
1.361.135 440,803 920,332 2.791.067 2,117,337 673.730
(1.542,621) (828.543) (714.080)1| (1.410,732) (813.287) (597.445)
- - - (117.689) (240,798) (176.891)
817 817 - (49.501) (49.501) -
(8.913) (8.735) (178) (7,040) (6,899) (141)
(1.550.720) (836.162) (714.258)  (1.884.962)  (1.110.485) (774.477)
(189.585) (395.639) 206.074 906,105 1.006.852 (100.747)
(189,383) (395.659) 206.074 906,105 1,006,852 (100,747)
(393.659) 1.006.852
(189.585) 1.006.852
(.68% 9.38%
(1.290) 94,443
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26.2

27.

27.1

The Company apportioned rental/markup income lor sharing with SBP into income earned related to profit and loss
sharing schemes and income related to other operations. Other expenses and other income are apportioned on the samc
basis except for interest on SBP credit lines and other charges which arc apportioned in the ratio 98:02: and
administrative expenses which are allocated as per weightage in tolal average earning assets as advised by the SBP. SBP
is entitled for share of net profit/loss related to profit and loss sharing schemes worked out as above in the ratio of aclive
credit lines and overdue credit lines.

Interest carned on Intercst Bearing Schemes are allocated completely to other operations.
In casc of net loss, SBP will share the loss, nct of free reserves and credit balances. it any, in the profit and loss account
of the Company in the same ratio as {or sharing profits.

2012 2011
Rupees in '000
TAXATION
Current - for the year

Company 40.215 112,885
Associate - -
40.215 112,885
Current - for prior year
Company 39 23.178
Deferred - for the year
Company - -
Associate - -
40,254 136,063
Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit / (loss)
Accounting (loss) / profit before taxation (188,295) 811,662
Tax on Accounting (loss) / profit @ 35% (201 1: 35%) (65.903) 284.082
Tax Effeets of:
- expenses that are not deductible / deductable for determining taxable profit 106.118 110.853
- prior ycar charge 39 23.178
- adjustiment of accumulated tax losscs - (282,050)
40,254 136,063

The taxation officer while assessing the taxable income lor the tax ycars 2008 and 2009 has disallowed certain expenses
on account ol interest on loans to directors. executives & officers. administrative expenses pertaining to dividend income
and capital gain on bonus units of mutual funds. reconciliation adjustments. interest on IDA loan. provision for doubtful
insurance premium and provision of non performing loan under SBP share aggregating to Rs 1.225.550 million. Further.
demand charges, excess insurance premium contribution and commission under Group Insurance Policy aggregating 10
Rs. 116.363 million were added, thus additional demands of Rs. 259.90 million and Rs. 105.89 million for tax year 2008
and 2009 respectively were created. The Company has filed appeals with CI'T (Appeals) against the said orders. Apart
from this. an appeal before Honorable tligh Court is filed by the Company for adjudication on the issue of invoking
scetion 122(5A) of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. without the approval ol the concerned Commissioner, the decision of
which is pending for adjudication. No provision has been made in these financial statements in this regard as the
management is conlident that ultimate outcome will be in favour ol the Company. However. subscquent to the year.
Commissioner Inland Revenue, in his order dated March 05. 2013 has annulled various add backs of Rs. 747.647 million
and Rs. 195,123 million for the tax ycars 2008 and 2009 respectively.

The taxation officer while assessing taxable income for the tax vears 2006 and 2007 has disallowed certain expenses on
account of initial depreciation, demand charges. retirement benefits. suspension of income and writien-olT loans. clc.
and crealed an additional demand of Rs. 20.28 million and Rs. 39.71 million. respectively. The Company has filed
appeals with CIT(Appcals) against the said orders. The CI'T {A) in its order dated June 11,2010 has conflirmed the action
of taxation officer on account of initial depreciation. demand charges. cte. and directed him to rectily his order in respect
ol suspended income and writing off ol income 10 PASMIC in tax year 2007 after verifying the documents available with
the Company. The Company had liled an appeal with the Appellate ‘Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) against the order
passed by CIT (A). No provision has been made in the financial statements in this regard as the management is confident
that ultimate outcome ol the appeals in question will be in favour of the Company.

.
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28.

29.

30.

31.
311

During the preceding year, taxation ollicer while assessing the taxable income for the tax year 2006 has disallowed the
share of loss of State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) amounting to Rs. 145.620 million and added the same to the taxable
income under scction 122(5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance. 2001, thus created an additional demand of Rs. 51.747
million. The Company has filed appecal with CI'T (Appeals) against the said order. No provision has becn made in these
tinancial statements in this regard as the management is confident that uwltimate outcome will be in favour of the
Company. However, subscquent to the year. Commissioner Inland Revenue. in his order dated March 05. 2013 has
annulled this add back.

Taxation officer while assessing the taxable income [or the tax year 2005 has disallowed the share of loss of State Bank
of Pakistan (SBP) amounting to Rs. 1,276.323 million and addcd the same to the taxable income under section 122(5A)
of the Income Tax Ordinance. 2001. thus created an additional demand of Rs. 448.03 miltion. The Company has filed
appeal with CIT (Appeals) against the said order. Apart from this, an appeal before Honorable High Court is filed by the
Company for adjudication on the issuc of invoking secction 122(5A) of Income Tax Ordinance, 200}, without the
approval of the concerned Commissioner, the decision of which is pending for adjudication. No provision has been made
in these financial stalements in this regard as the management is confident that ultimate outcome will be in favour of the
Company. However, subsequent to the vear. Commissioner Inland Revenue. in his order dated March 05. 2013 has
annulled this add back. :

The income tax assessment year 2001-2002 and tax year 2003 are pending at appellate forums. However. as a matter of
prudence sufficient tax provision has been made in the books of accounts.

The Company has nel deductible temporary difference on which deferred tax asset of Rs. 418.298 million arises.
However, the management is of the view that the Company would not be able to generate sufficient taxable profits in
foresecable future to utilize deferred tax assct unless restructuring of the Company is completed for which proposal is
pending with the Federal Government. In the absence of any time frame for restructuring of the Company, future cash
flow projections cannot be prepared. accordingly. the Company has not recognized delerred tax assct in these financial
statements.

BASIC & DILUTED (LOSS) / EARNINGS PER SHARI

(Loss) / profit for the year Rupees in '000 (228.549) 675,599
Weighted average number ol ordinary sharcs Numbers 300.100.006 300,100,006
Basic / diluted (loss) / carnings per sharc - Rupcee (0.76) 2.25

Diluted carnings per share has not been presented as the Company doces not have any convertible instruments in issue at
December 31,2012 and 2011 which would have any eflfect on the earnings per share if the option to convert is exercised.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and balance with treasury banks 4 63.943 57.803
Balance with other banks 5 168.310 448,761
232.253 506,564

STAFF STRENGTH
Permanent 779 801
Temporary / on contractual basis 19 25
798 826

DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN
Principal actuarial assumptions

The *Projected Unit Credit’ actuarial cost method. using the following significant assumptions. arc used by the actuary
lor the valuation:

2012 2011
Pension fund
Discount rate 1.5 % per annum 13 % per annum
lixpected rate of return on investments / plan asscts 11.5 % per annum 13 % per annum
P | P
l:xpected rate of increase in salary 10.5 % per annum 12 % pcr annum
P ) P
Pension increase rae 9 % per annum 9 % per anhum

§



31.2 Movement in payable to defined benefit plan

Opening net lability
Iixpense lor the year
Benclit payments
Contribution during the year
Balancc at December 31

Post retirement

Pension fund

Medical benefits

2012 2011 2012 20
Rupees in 000
(85.112) (22.7406) 566.929 513.959
221711 209.176 124.440 104.021}
(117.752) (271.542) (13.093) (51,051)
18.847 (85,112) 678,276 566,929

31.3 Reconciliation of payable to defined benefit plan
Post retirement
Pension fund Medical benefits
2012 2011 2012 2011
Rupees in 000
Present value of defined benefit obligation 3.140.200 2,620,728 1.003.934 738.826
I*air value of plan assets (2.205.520) (1.887,567) - -
Deficit 934.680 733.16) 1,003,934 738.826
Unrecognized actuarial loss (915.833) (818,273) (325,658) (171,897)
Net Jiability at December 31 18.847 (85,112) 678,276 566,929
31.4 Charge for defined benefit plan
Current service cost 78.134 069,844 19.443 15,537
Interest cost 333.041) 310918 95.196 82.992
Lxpected return on plan assets {245.384) (221,081) - -
166.091 159.682 114,639 98.529
Amortization of actuarial losses 55.620 49.494 9.801 5.492
221,711 209176 124.440 104,021
2012 2011
Rupees in '000
31.5 Actual return on plan assets
Pension fund 317,953 233,519
31.6  Composition of Fairr Valuc of Plan Asscts
2012 2011 2012 2011
Pension FFund Rupees in '000 % age
Government Bonds and TFC's 1.955.760 1.886.884 88.68 99.96
Bank Balances 249,760 683 11.32 0.04
2.205,520 1.887.567 100.00 100.00
317 Fhe expected return on plan assets was determined by considering the expected returns available on the assets underlying
the current investment policy. Expected yields on fixed interest investments are based on gross redemption yiclds as at
the reporting date. Expected return on equity investments reflect fong-term real rvates of return experienced in the market.
31.8 Five ycar's data on surplus / deficit of the plan and actuarial adjustments
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
S Rupees in 000 - - - - - - wocmoem oo >
Pension Fund
Present valuc of defined benefit obligation  3.140.201 2.620.728 2417489 2.085.972 1.889.013
JFair value of plan assets (2.205,520)  ().887.567) (1.654.048) (1.376.148) (1,232.536)
Deficit 934.681 733.161 763.441 709.824 656,477
Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obligation 225.750 94.017 989.519 {4.575) (215.425)
Actuarial (loss)/gains on plan assets (72.569) (12.438) (35.239) 78.943 (29.734)
31.9 Post Employment Medical Contribution
Present value of defined benefit obligation  1.003.934 738.826 638.194 547.389 507.654
Actuarial loss / (gain) on obligation 163.563 53.154 225.831 (39.380) (133.040)
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32.

32.1

32.2

33.

34.

COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

Managing Director Dircctors Executives
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
---------------------- Rupeesin "000 - -------cuoocmcoaoo.

Directors fees - - 260 961 - -
Managerial remuneration 4415 10,085 - - 31,437 47,250
Rent and house maintenance 2,052 2,894 - - 17,834 22,557
Utilities 654 793 - - 1,458 1,920
Medical 95 254 - - 6,341 2,001
Charge for defined benefit plan - - - - 31,165 8,796
Others 4,616 7.257 - - 12,735 14,617
11,832 21,283 260 961 100,970 97,14)
Number of persons ] ! 4 4 2] 27

Executive means employee, other than the Chicf Exccutive and Dircctors, whose basic salary exceed five
hundred thousand rupees in a financial year.

The Company also provides free use of the Company maintained car to Managing Dircctor and Executives in
accordance with their entitlements.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The fair value of traded investments other than thosc classified as held to maturity is based on quoted market
price. Fair value of unquoted equity investments is dctermined on the basis of break up value of these
investments as per the latest available financial statements.

Fair value of fixed term loans, other assets, other liabilitics and fixed term deposits cannot be calculated with
sufficient reliability due to absence of current and active market for such assets and liabilities and reliable data
regarding market rates for similar instruments. The provision for non-performing advances has been calculated
in accordance with the Company's accounting policy as stated in note 3.4 to these {inancial statements.

The repricing profile, effective rates and maturity arc stated in note 36.3.1 and 36.4.1.

The management is of the view that the fair value of the remaining financial assets and liabilities are not
significantly different from their carrying values since asscts and liabilitics arc cither short term in nature or in
the case of customer advances are frequently repriced.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related parties comprise associated undertaking, rctirement benefit plans, directors and key management
personnel of the Company. These transactions were madc on substantially the same commercial terms as those
prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with unrelated partics and did not involve more than a
normal amount of risk. There were no transactions with the key management personnel other than those under
the terms of their employment. Details of transactions with the related partics other than thosc which have been
disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, are as follows:

2012 2011
Relationship Nature of Transaction Rupees in '000
Associated undertaking
Takaful Pakistan Limited Insurance premium paid 7.007 583
Insurance claims received 6,71} 555
Key management personnel Proceeds from disposal of opcrating fixed assets 41 17
Loans and advances 17.879 29,660
Retirement benefits plans Pension fund - 8,796
Post retircment medical benefits 7,494 3.873

The related party status of outstanding rcceivables and payables as at December 31, 2012 arc included in
respective notes to the financial statements.

Remuncration to key management personnel is disclosed in Note 32 to these {inancial statcments.
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35.

35.1

35.3

CAPITAL ADEQUACY
Scope of Applications

The Basel 1l Framework as prescribed by the SBP is applicable to the Company in the assessment of its
capital adequacy requirement.

Capital Structure
The Company's regulatory capital is divided into two tiers:

Tier 1, which include share capital, retained earnings, gencral reserves and unappropriated profits after
deductions for intangibles.

Tier 2, which include general provision or reserve for loan losses (up to maximum of 1.25% of risk weighted
assels), reserve on revaluation of fixed assets and equity invesiments (up to 45% of the balance in the related
revaluation reserve).

Tier 3 Capital has also been prescribed by the SBP for managing market risk; however the Company does
not have any Tier 3 capital.
2012 2011
Rupees in '000

Tier 1 Capital

Sharecholders equity 3,001,000 3.001,000
Reserves 620,610 620,610
Accumulated losses (1.299,015) (1.070,466)
less: Intangible assets (2,963) (2.070)
Surplus / (deficit) on account of revaluation of investments held in AFS

category _ 4,110 (5,013)
Other deductions - -
Total Tier I Capital 2,323,742 2,544,061

Tier 11 Capital

Subordinated Debt (upto 50% of total Tier | Capital) - -
General Provisions subject to 1.25% of Total Risk Weighted Assets 79,360 90,061
Revaluation Reserve - -

Other deductions - -

Total Tier 11 Capital 79,360 90,061

Tier 111 Capital - -

Total Regulatory Capital Base 2,403,102 2,634,122

Capital Adequacy

Objectives of Managing Capital

The Company's objectives when managing capital arc:

- To develop systems and procedures for accurate measurcment of the risks to identify deviation from
approvced risk parameters.

- To maintain a strong capital base to support the development of its business.

- To achieve low overall cost of capital with appropriatc mix of capital elements.
. 42
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Externally Imposed Capital Requirements

In order 10 strengthen the solvency of Development Financial Institutions (DFls), SBP through its BSD
Circular No. 19 of 2008 dated September 5, 2008 has asked to raise their minimum paid up capital to Rs. 6
billion up to December 31, 2009. However, there is a shortfall of Rs. 3.677 billion in minimum capital
requirement. The Company has approached its shareholders i.c. Ministry of Finance and State Bank of
Pakistan, to inject the required capital to mect the shortfall which is under consideration (Note 1.1).

The State Bank of Pakistan vide its letter No. BSD/BAID/659/2145/2012 dated February 16, 2012 has
granted exemption to the Company to comply with the minimum capital requirement til] December 31, 2012
or completion of privatization / restructuring process, whichever is later.

SBP through its BSD Circular No. 07 of 2009 dated April 15, 2009 has also asked to achieve the minimum
Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) of 10%. The capital adcquacy ratio (CAR) of the Company stands at 23% of
its risk weighted exposures as at December 31, 2012. The Company has maintained capital adequacy ratio
well above 10%. Morefully explained in Note I.1, subsequent to year end, it has becen decided between the
representatives of SBP, SECP and the Company to convert the Company's total outstanding debt of Rupees
11.242 billion payable along with markup payable of Rupces 2.448 billion (aggregately Rupees 13.69
billion) in the equity of the Company.

35.4 Risk-Weighted Exposures

36.

2012 2011
Risk Risk
Capital Capital
apna Weighted apra Weighted
Requirements Requirements
: Assets Assets
Rupees in '000 Rupees in '000

Credit Risk

Portfolios subject to standardized approach 776,405 7,764,052 582,160 5,821,604
(Simple or Comprehensive)

Market Risk

Capital requirement for portfolios subject to

standardized approach

Interest rate risk 15,101 188,763 22,066 275,820
Equity position risk etc.

Operational Risk

Capital Requirement for operational risks 199.683 2,496,042 188,092 2.351,145
10,448,858 8,448,569

Capital Adequacy Ratio

Total regulatory capital held (a) 2,403,102 2,634,122

Total Risk Weighted Assets (b) 10,448,858 8,448,569

Capital Adequacy Ratio (a)/ (b) 23.00% 31.18%

RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial Institutions are exposed to various risks in pursuit of their business objectives. The nature and
complexity of these risks has rapidly changed over time. ‘The failure to adequately manage these risks not
only results in business losses but also places hurdles in achicving strategic objectives. Consequently. a solid
and vigorous risk management framework in the organization is required.

The Company's risk Management Policy is in line with the Risk Management Guidelines of State Bank of
Pakistan and Basel Il Accord. The Risk Management Policy is approved by the Board of Directors,
43
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36.1

The risk management policies and procedures cover all activities of the Company including credit
evaluation, treasury and investment operations. The basic principles employed in formulation of the
above policies and procedures involves identification, measurement, monitoring and controlling
risks to ensure that: -

- The Company's risk exposure is within the limits established by the Board of Directors.

- Risk taking decisions are in line with the business strategy and objectives of the Company.

- The expected payoffs compensate the risks taken by the company.

Risk profile of the Company

The key risks are credit risk, liquidity risk, market risk and operational risk.
Risk Structures and Responsibilitics

Orgpanizational framework for Risk Management includes the (ollowing, :

The Board of Directors is responsible for overall supervision of the risk management process. A
Board Risk Management Commitlee was formed to regularly review risk related activities of the
organization. The Board Risk Management Committee is responsible to establish and implement
risk management framework of the Company. Nonetheless. since the board of the Company is now
required to be re-constituted, the commitiee will also be re-constituted accordingly. Individual risks
are reviewed and controlled by various committecs at management level like ALCO and Credit
Committee.

Risk Management Department is responsible for coordinating all the risk management activities of
the Company. It ensure that risks remain within the boundaries as defined by the Board, comply
with the risk parameters and prudential limits and work out remedial measures. The core function is
to identify, measure, monitor and report key risks to which company may be exposed. It works in
close coordination with all the functions and business units that are involved in risk taking.

Risk Management department undertakes the following activitics on regular basis utilizing the
overall risk framework: -
- TFormulate policies and guidelines for managing all risk categories.
- Develop systems and procedures. These systems and procedures should be capable of accurate
measurement of the risks to identifv deviation from anvroved risk parameters.
- Facilitate introduction and implementation of prudent practices for risk management.
- Tacilitate management in business decisions by providing analytical and conceptual risk reviews
- Communicate and liaise with other functions and business units in carrying out risk reviews,
analysis and mitigation activities.
Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that a customer or counterparty may not scttie an obligation for full value,
either when due or at any time thereafter. This risk arises from the potential that a customer or
counterparty's willingness Lo meet an obligation or its ability to mect such an obligation is impaired.
resulting in an economic loss to the Company.

Housing Finance is the core function of the Company and credit risk is the major risk faced by the
Company. Credit risk is incurred mainly in the following two arcas ol’its operations: -

- Inits credit operations. where it provides housing finance to retail or wholesale clients; and

- In treasury opcerations where credit risk is incurred with counterpartics in its investments in financial

markets and instruments.
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Overall credit risk is monitored by Credit Committee at Head Office, which reviews and
recommends improvements in credit policies and monitors portfolio behavior. To further strengthen
credit risk management and credit setup, proper delegation of credit decisions at committee level
with appropriate approving limits has been made,

IFollowing measures have been applied to eovern credit policy of the Company: -

Lending process and decision is based on a {ull apprcciation of the risks inherent in the

Management monitors credit portfolio through MIS reports.

36.1.1

36.1.2

Stress testing for individual credits and the overall credit portfolio under adverse changes in the
conditions / environment in which the borrowers operate.

The Company has instituted an cffective system for monitoring scrvicing of its performing credit
portfolio and collection of non performing portfolio.

The Company creates loan loss provisions against non-performing advances in accordance with
Prudential Regulations issued by SBP.

Credit Risk Mitigation

It is the Company's policy to reduce or mitigate credit risk on credit facilities or exposures, by
securing these with collaterals. To correctly asscss the extent to which the collateral mitigates
the credit risk the collateral must be valued according to a specified valuation method,
documented and monitored.

In this regard following steps have been taken: -

- OQutsourcing of property title verification.

- OQutsourcing of borrower income verification.

- Outsourcing of property valuation.

Credit Risk is also mitigated through a set up of sub credit committee at Zonal and Regional
level for credit approvals depending upon the level of risk assumed. Overall credit risk is
monitored by central credit committee which reviews and recommends improvements in credit
policies and monitors portfolio behavior.

To strengthen credit risk management and to fulfill SBP requirements, the company is working
to develop and implement internal credit risk rating system for its entire credit portfolio.

Collateral & Sccurity

Collateral is an important mitigant of credit risk. All the residential mortgages are
collateralized. Valuation of the collateral is taken within agreed parameters. The legal
mechanism by which collaterals is pledged and the Company's procedures ensure that the
Company has clear rights over the collaterals and may liquidate. retain or take legal possession
of itin a timely manner in the event of default.

Insurance Cover

Every borrower and guarantor is insured for lifc and disability for repayment ol the balance amount of
the loans.

Every property taken as collateral is insured.

Credit Concentration Risk

Concentration of credit risk {(whether on and off Balance Sheet) that arise from financial
instruments exist for counterparties when they have similar economic characteristic that would
cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be affected in a similar way by changes in
economic or the conditions. This is managed through counterpartics limits.

Segmental information

Segmental Information is presented in respect of the class of business and geographical

distribution of Advances. Deposits. Contingencies and Commitments.
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Segments by class of business

Housing finance

Individuals

Others

Housing finance

Individuals

Others

36.1.2.2 Segment by sector

Public / Government

Private

Public / Government

Private

------------------------- 20012 - - - - e m e
Contingencices and
Advances (Gross) Deposits Commitments
Rupees Percent Rupees Pereent Rupeces Percent
in '000 Y% in '000 Yo in '000 Y
12,854,842 98.03 - - - -
257,989 1.97 - - 669.636 100.00
13,112,831 100 - - 669,636 100.00
------------------------- 2000 - - o m e e
Contingencies and
Advances (Gross) Deposits Commitments
Rupees Percent Rupees Percent Rupces Percent
in '000 Yo in "000 Yo in '000 %
13,429,499 98.07 - - - -
264,380 1.93 - - 600,991 100.00
13,693,879 100 - - 600,991 100.00
------------------------- 2002 - - - oo
Contingencies and
Advances (Gross) Deposits Commitments
Rupeces Percent Rupees Percent Rupees Percent
in '000 Yo in '000 o in '000 Yo
249,359 1.90 - 200,000 29.87
12,863,472 98.10 - - 469,636 70.13
13,112,831 100.00 - - 669,636 100.00
------------------------- P e
Contingencies and
Advances (Gross) Deposits Commitments
Rupees Percent Rupcees Perceent Rupees Percent
in "000 Yo in "000 Yo in '000 Yo
255,750 1.87 - - 200,000 33.28
13,438,129 98.13 - - 400.991 66.72
13,693,879 100.00 - - 600,991 100.00
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36.1.2.3

36.1.2.4

36.1.2.5

36.2
36.2.1

36.2.2

Details of non-performing advances and specific provisions by class of business segment

2012 2011
Classified Specific Classified Specific
Advancces Provisions Advances Provisions
lleld Held

--------- Rupees in 600 - --------

Individuals 7.693.692 3,106,259 7,912,488 3,165,517
Others 39,846 39,846 46,237 46,237
7,733,538 3,146,105 7,958,725 3,211,754

Details of non-performing advances and specific provisions by sector

Public/ Government 31,210 31,216 37,606 37,606
Private 7,702,322 3,114,889 7,921,019 3,174,148
7,733,538 3,146,105 7,958,625 3,211,754

Geographical segment analysis

(Loss) / profit

before Total assets Net assets Contingencies and
~taxation employed employed commitments

--------------- Rupees in '000 - - - - - - oo oo -

2012
Pakistan (188,295) 19,923,262 2,544,848 669,636
2011

Pakistan 811,662 19,286,712 2,764,274 663,518

Credit Risk-General Disclosures Basel 11 Specific

Credit Risk - General Disclosures
The Company has adopted the Standardized Approach of Basel 1T for weighting its Credit Risk Exposures.

Credit Risk Disclosures for portfolio subject to the Standardized Approach -Basel 1 Specific

Under Standardized approach, the capital requirement is based on the credit rating assigned to the counter
parties by the External Credit Assessment Institution (ECAL) duly recognized by SBP for capital adequacy
purposes. In this connection , the Company utilizes the credit rating assigned by recognized agencies such
as PACRA and JCR-VIS.

Types of Exposures and ECAY's used
Current Year

Exposures JCR-VIS PACRA S([))‘cll?;y)
Corporate Y v X
Banks Y v X
Sovereigns N X X
SME's X X X
Sccuritizations N N X
Others (Specify) X X X
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36.2.3 For exposure amounts after risk mitigation subject to standardized approach, amount of Company
outstanding (rated & unrated) in each risk bucket as well as thosc that are deducted are as follows: -

Credit Exposures subject to Standardized approach
Current Year

Rating Amount Deduction Net
Exposures Category # Outstanding CRM Amount
Corporate 2106 22,774 - 22,774
Banks 1&3 368,634 144,830 223,804
Sovereigns etc. - 63,942 - 63,942
Unrated 10,886,742 - 10,886,742
11,342,092 144,830 11,197,262

CRM = Credit Risk Mitigation

36.2.4 Credit Risk: Disclosures with respect to Credit Risk Mitigation for Standardized Approaches-Basel
11 Specific
The Company has adopted Simple Approach of Credit Risk Mitigation for the Banking Book. For instance
where the Company's exposure on an obligor is sccured by collateral that conforms with the eligibility
criteria under the Simple Approach of CRM, then the Company reduces its exposure under that particular
transaction by taking into account the risk mitigating cffect of the collateral for the calculation of capital
requirement. i.e. risk weight of the collateral instrument sccuring the exposure is substituted for the risk
weight of the counterparty. In order to obtain the credit risk mitigation benefit, the Company uses
realizable value of eligible collaterals to the extent of §0% of outstanding exposure.

36.2.5 Equity position risk in the banking book-Basel 11 Specific

At present the Company has no investment position in equity holdings.

36.3 Market Risk

Market Risk Management is the risk that the value ol on and off - balance sheet positions of the Company
will be adversely affected by movements in markct rates or prices such as interest rates, foreign exchange
rates, equity prices, credit spreads and / or commodity prices resulting in a loss to carnings and capital.

The Company is exposed only to interest rate risk in its banking and trading book. Foreign exchange risk
and equity price risk is not applicable to the Company.

The organization sct up for Market Risk Management in the Company is as under: -

- The Board of Directors

- The Board Risk Management Commitice (BRMC)

- The Assct-Liability Management Committee (ALCO); and
- Middle Office

36.3.1 Responsibilities of ALCO
Responsibilities of ALCO with regard to market risk management aspects includc:

- Assess the Company’s current balance shect position.

- Review the appropriateness of the existing stratcgics.

- Develop asset and liability strategies.

- Set the quantifiable targets to achieve the asset Lability stratcgics.

- Product pricing for borrowing and advances.

- Decide on desired maturity profile and mix of incremental assets and liabilitics.
- Review liquidity & funding plans for the Company.

36.3.2 Responsibilitics of Middle Office

The middle office performs treasury and market risk management activitics. It is responsible for
verification of all the deals made by front olfice and monitoring of portfolio position. It is responsible for
review of treasury policy, process and involve in rescarch. It works for measurement, modeling,
mitigating, and reporting of interest rate risk and liquidity risk.
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36.5

36.5.1

37.

38.

39.
39.1

39.2

Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes. people and systems,
including system conversions and integration, and external events. Operational risk exists in all products and business
activities because of the nature, volume and complexity of the operations.

The Company sceks to manage the operational risk from 1wo perspectives. [irst by way of ensuring compliance of
standard operating procedures including defined processes for prevention and detection of any fraud and forgery. and
work place safety and security and second through contingency planning to ensure continuity of business. Policies
and procedures in shape of manuals covering all functions are duly approved by the Board and implemented in the
Company. Primarily operational risk is continuously reviewed by the Management.

Morcover Internal Audil, Compliance and Risk Management functions are involved in monitoring. mitigation and
control of operational risk.

Operational Risk Disclosures-Basel 11 Specific

The Company is currently using the Basic Indicator approach to calculate the capital charge for
Operational Risk as per Basel 1l regulatory framework. The Company's operational risk management
framework has been developed to create an environment within which opcrationat risk can be identified,
measured. managed and monitored in a consistent manner.

CORRESPONDING FIGURES

There were no major account balances reclassified or rearranged during the year. However, the adjustment
to "Reversal of provision against non-performing advances” and "Reversal due to relief package and
reprocessing adjustments” has been disclosed in Note 20.2 to thesc financial statements.

DATEOF AUTHORIZATION

These financial statements werc approved and authorized for issuc on by the Board of

Directors of the Company.
GENERAL
Figures have been rounded-off to the nearest thousand rupees except stated otherwise.

Captions as prescribed in BSD circular No. 4 dated February 17, 2006 issued by the State Bank of Pakistan
in respect of which no amounts are outstanding have not been reproduced in these financial statements
excent for in the balance sheet and the profit and loss account.
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